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2014-15 was a good year for CCL International Limited. I am 
delighted with the success we have achieved, and I am sure you 
are too. CCL International Limited is proud of our work helping to 
expand infrastructure networks, which have earned us the 
position of preferred contractor to numerous public-private 
entities all across the country.

Amid the continuing challenge of the most difficult global 
macroeconomic environment in decades, we delivered strong 
operating performance that has generated significant operating 
cash flow. I believe these financial results and operational 
performance reflect a compelling story of CCL International 
Limited at work, which has set us on a path to strong,                                                                          
sustainable earnings growth.

We can now confidently say that CCL International Limited 
continues to operate from a position of balance and strength. We are growing construction business in not only 
India but also stretching global. We are performing today to deliver top-tier financial performance, while investing to 
ensure that our performance levels can be sustained in the long term. This year we stepped up our investments 
without compromising in brand building, R&D, emerging markets infrastructure and our people.

The ability to effectively identify, mitigate and manage the construction risk inherent in every project it undertakes, 
and the ability to deliver those projects in a manner that appropriately protects the safety of employees, 
stakeholders and the public, are key elements of success in the construction industry. Developing industry leading 
capabilities in these areas is a fundamental part of CCL's strategy. CCL International has established a detailed set 
of project criteria and risk management practices that are continuously reviewed, updated and improved. From the 
criteria set for selecting the projects it bids, to the evaluation of project risks and appropriate mitigation measures, 
to project pricing and the senior management approval processes a bid must go through, risk management is a 
strategic and operational priority for CCL International. An important element of CCL International's risk 
management strategy is the ongoing monitoring of projects under construction to ensure that the risk management 
plan established at the bid stage of the project remains sufficient and is being effectively implemented. To assist in 
this effort, CCL International has established a 'project controls' team, consisting of some of CCL International's 
most experienced and knowledgeable staff, whose mandate is to ensure that complex projects are provided with 
state-of-the-art management controls for contract administration, cost control, scheduling and other best 
practices. This team also reviews the status of key projects against a set of pre-determined criteria, and ensures 
that the project is meeting its financial and risk management objectives.

This year we started certain safety programs from our front line employees to the managing division onsite. It is the 
responsibility of everyone at CCL to ensure each worker, including direct employees and subcontractors, gets 
home safely to their families each day. Training is being provided for various activities now on-site to reduce 
accidents to zero levels, which include tripping hazards, pedestrian and vehicle traffic, construction awareness, 
ladder safety, dressing for the weather, secured shelving in storage areas, electrical safety, and personal protective 
equipment.

We are confident that CCL International will be India's premier construction and infrastructure Development 
Company. Our employees across India are hard at work making CCL International the best company for our clients, 
our partners, and you, our valued shareholders. 

Thank you for your continued support.

RAMA GUPTA
(Managing Director)
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Dear Shareholders,



5. Ratification of the remuneration of Cost 
Auditor

Day, Date : Wednesday, 30th day of September,  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or 
                     2015 without modification, the following resolution 

as an ordinary resolution:
Time : 12:30 P.M.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
Venue : Hotel “Golden Palm” at Plot No. 6C,   of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
                   Mandawali, Fazalpur, Delhi – 92 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014 and Companies (Cost Records 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: and Audit) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited the time being in force}, the remuneration 

Financial Statements of the Company for the payable to M/s. Neeraj Sharma & Co., Cost 
financial year ended 31st March 2015, Auditors (Firm Registration No. 100466) 
together with the reports of the Board of appointed by the Board to conduct Audit of the 
Directors and Auditor's thereon. cost records of the Company relating to the 

“Work Contract” for the Financial Year 2015-
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Akash 16, as set out in the Statement annexed to the 

Gupta (DIN No.01940481), who retires by notice convening this meeting, be and is 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re- hereby ratified.”
appointment.  

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board 
3. To declare dividend of Rs. 0.05 per equity share Directors of the Company be and is hereby 

for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2015. authorized to take all such steps as may be 
necessary, proper and expedient to give effect 

4. Ratification of Auditor's Appointment to this resolution.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or 6. Appointment of Mr. Akash Gupta as a 
without modification, the following resolution Managing Director & Chief Executive 
as an ordinary resolution: Officer of the Company 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or 
of section 139 and all other applicable without modifications, the following resolution 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as an ordinary resolution:
Rules framed thereunder, as amended from 
time to time, the company hereby ratifies & “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
confirms the appointment of M/s. KPMC & of Sections 196, 197, 198, Schedule V and all 
Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Registration No. 005359C), as Auditors of the Companies Act, 2013,('the Act') the Company 
company to hold office from the conclusion of hereby approves the appointment of Mr. Akash 
this Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the Gupta (DIN 01940481)  as Managing Director 
conclusion of the 28th Annual General Meeting and designated as Chief Executive officer of 
of the Company to be held in the year 2019, on the Company for a period of five years with 
a remuneration of Rs. 30,000 per annum effect from 30.09.2015 to 29.09.2020 on the 
(Rupees Thirty Thousand only) for the year terms and conditions as set out in the 
2015-16 .” statement pursuant to section 102 of the Act 

attached to the notice.”
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Notice is hereby given that 24th Annual General 
Meeting of the Members of CCL International 
Limited, will be held as under to transact the 
following business: -

NOTICE
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8.

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT upon 
recommendat ion by Nominat ion and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board of 
Directors may alter and vary the terms and 
conditions of the said appointment and/or the 
agreement in such manner as may be agreed to 
between the company and Mr. Akash Gupta 
(DIN 01940481)”.

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any 
financial year during the currency of the tenure 
of Mr. Akash Gupta (DIN 01940481), the 
Company has no profits or its profits are 
inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration 
not exceeding the ceiling limit prescribed in 
Schedule V of the  Companies Act, 2013 as 
amended from time to time as minimum 
remuneration and in case the Company pays in 
excess of the said limits as specified in the 
Schedule V during the stated period, then the 
payment of excess remuneration shall be 
subject to the approval of Central Government 
(Ministry of Corporate Affairs).”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Akash 
Gupta (DIN 01940481) shall be liable to retire by 
rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or a 
Committee thereof be and is hereby authorized 
to take all such steps as may be necessary, 
proper and expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.”

7. Consolidation of Equity Shares of the 
Company 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution: 

 "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of sections 61 (1) (b) and 64 and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions, if any 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), 
and also subject to such approvals, consents, 
permissions and sanctions, if any, as may be 
required from any authority, (including SEBI and 
Stock Exchanges) and subject to such 
conditions as may be agreed to by the Board or 
Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred 
to as "the Board'', which term shall also include 
any duly constituted and authorized committee 

thereof), consent of the Members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company to 
consolidate every  5 (Five) existing equity 
shares of nominal face value of Re. 2/- 
(Rupee Two Only) each fully paid up into 
1(One) Equity Share nominal face value of 
Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each fully paid-
up and pursuant to the consolidation of the 
equity shares of the Company, the issued, 
subscribed and paid up equity shares of face 
value of Re. 2/- (Rupee Two ) each shall 
stand consolidated into equity shares of face 
value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each, fully 
paid-up.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT upon 
consolidation of 5 (Five) Equity Shares of Rs. 
2/- (Rupee Two Only) each into One (1)  
Equity Share of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) 
each, the total number of Consolidated 
Equity Shares constituting such Fractions 
shall be transferred to a person or persons 
appointed by the Board as Trustee or 
Trustees for and on behalf of such fractional 
equity shareholders. The details of such 
fractional equity shareholders will be 
provided to the Trustee so as to enable 
Trustee to distribute the net proceeds of sale 
of such fractional shares amongst the 
shareholders in proportion to their 
entitlement over such fractional shares after 
payment of all expenses of the sale and other 
related expense.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to 
Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
pursuant to provisions of the Article of 
Association of the Company, the consent of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to 
alter Clause V of the Memorandum of 
Association of the company and replaced it 
with the following clause:

V. “The Authorized Share Capital of the 
Company is Rs.33,00,00,000 /- (Rupees 
Thirty Three Crores only) divided into 
3,30,00,000 Equity Share of Company of 
Rs 10/-(Rupees Ten) each”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors (including any committee thereof) 
of the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to issue new share certificates where 
required representing the shares with new 

distinctive numbers in the aforesaid proportion 
subject to the rules as laid down in the 
Companies (Share Capital And Debentures) 
Rules, 2014 with an option to either exchange 
the new share certificates in lieu of cancellation 
of the old share certificates or without the 
physically exchanging the share certificates, by 
treating the old share certificates as deemed to 
be cancelled and also to inform to the 
depositories to take the necessary corporate 
action with regard to dematerialized shares to 
give effect to the above and do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things as may be 
necessary, required, desirable or expedient in 
connection with or incidental to the 
consolidation of the equity shares of the 
Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors (including any committee thereof) of 
the Company be and is hereby authorized to do 
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it 
may consider necessary expedient, usual or 
proper to give effect to this Resolution including 
but not limited to fixation of Record Date as per 
the requirement of the Listing Agreement, 
execution of all necessary documents with 
Stock Exchanges where company's equity 
shares are listed, National Securities 
Depository Limited and Central Depository 
Services(India)Limited and/or any other 
relevant statutory authority if any, appointment 
of Registrar, cancellation or rectification of the 
existing share certificates in lieu of the old 
certificates and to settle any question or 
difficulty that may arise in regard to the 
consolidation of the equity shares of the 
Company.”

8. Appointment of Mr. Mukesh Kumar Sharma 
as a Professional Director

To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or 
without modifications, the following resolution 
as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Mukesh Kumar 
Sharma, (DIN 03468219) who was appointed 
by the Board of Directors as an Additional 
Director of the Company with effect from March 
21, 2015 and who holds office upto the date of 
this Annual General Meeting of the Company in 
terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“Act”) and in respect of whom the 
Company has received a notice in writing from a 

Member under Section 160 of the Act 
proposing his candidature for the office of 
Director of the Company, be and is hereby 
appointed as a Professional Director of the 
Company to hold office for three consecutive 
years for a term up to 29th September, 2018, 
upon such terms and conditions as may be 
determined by the board of directors.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  Mr. Mukesh 
Kumar Sharma, (DIN 03468219)  shall be 
liable to retire by rotation.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or a 
Committee thereof be and is hereby 
authorised to take all such steps as may be 
necessary, proper and expedient to give effect 
to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Director 
Place : Delhi
Dated : 02.09.2015

(RAMA GUPTA)
Managing Director

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND 
VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO 
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
INSTEAD OF HIM AND A PROXY NEED NOT 
BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Proxies, 
in order to be effective, must be received at the 
Company's Registered Office not less than 48 
hours before the meeting. Proxies submitted 
on behalf of companies, societies, partnership 
firms, etc. must be supported by appropriate 
resolution/ authority, as applicable, issued on 
behalf of the nominating organization. 
Members are requested to note that a person 
can act as a proxy on behalf of members not 
exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not 
more than 10% of the total share capital of the 
Company carrying voting rights. In case a 
proxy is proposed to be appointed by a 
member holding more than 10% of the total 
share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy 
for any other person or shareholder.

2. The statement, pursuant to section 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in respect of 
Special Business under item nos. 5 to 8 set out 
above to be transacted at the meeting is 
annexed hereto and form part of this Notice.

NOTES
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3. The Relevant details of Directors seeking 
appointment/ re-appointment under item No. 2, 
6 & 8, in pursuant to Clause 49 of the listing 
agreement, are annexed hereto and form part 
of this Notice.

4. The Register of Member and Share Transfer 
Book (“Books”) of the Company will remain 
closed from the Tuesday, 22nd September, 
2015 to Wednesday, 30th September 2015 
(both days inclusive).

5. (i) A Dividend of Rs. 0.05 per equity share of Rs. 
2/- as recommended by the Board, if  declared 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, 
will be paid to those members on or before 
Thursday, 29th October, 2015 to those 
Members: (a) whose names appear as 
Beneficial Owners at the end of the business 
hours on, Monday, 21st September, 2015 in 
the list of Beneficial Owners to be furnished by 
the Depositories (NSDL and CDSL) in respect 
of the shares held in electronic form; and (b) 
whose names appear as Members on the 
Company's Register of Members after giving 
effect to valid Transfer requests in physical 
form lodged with the Company or its Registrar 
& Share Transfer Agent (RTA) on or before 
Monday,21st September, 2015.

(ii) No tax at source shall be deducted from the 
dividend amount payable to the members. 
Corporate Dividend Tax will be paid by the 
company at the applicable rate on the total 
amount of dividend payable by the company.

6. Members are requested to note that dividends 
not claimed within seven years from the date of 
transfer to the Company's Unpaid Dividend 
Account, will as per Section 205A of the 
Companies Act, 1956 be transferred to the 
Investor Education Protection Fund.

7. Corporate Members intending to send their 
authorized representative(s) are requested to 
send, a Certified True copy of the Board 
Resolution authorizing their representative to 
attend & vote on their behalf at Annual General 
Meeting. 

Relevant documents referred in the 
accompanying Notice shall be available at the 
Registered Office of the Company for 
inspection between 11:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M.  on 
all working day up to the date of ensuing 

Annual General Meeting to be held on 
Wednesday, 30th September, 2015.

8. Members seeking any information or having 
queries with regards to accounts are 
requested to write the Company seven day in 
advance so as to enable the management to 
keep the information ready.

9. Members/ Proxies should bring the enclosed 
Attendance Slip duly filled in, for attending the 
Annual General Meeting, along with their 
copy of the Annual Report. Copies of the 
Annual Report will not be distributed at the 
Meeting.

10. Members are requested to notify any change 
in address, if any under their signatures to the 
Company at its registered office of the 
Company, quoting Folios Nos.

11.  Members who hold shares in Dematerialized 
Form are requested to bring their Client ID 
and DP ID number and those who hold the 
share in physical form are requested to bring 
their Folio Number for easy identification of 
attendance at the Meeting.

12.  Shares of the Company are compulsorily 
traded in Demat mode. The Company has 
entered into an Agreement with National 
Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and 
Central Securities Depository Ltd. (CSDL) for 
Dematerialization of shares. 

13.  As per SEBI direction for having Common 
Transfer Agency for physical as well as 
Demat mode, the Company has appointed 
M/s. Alankit Assignments Ltd, Alankit House, 
Alankit House, 4E/2, Jhadewalan Extension, 
New Delhi-110055 ; Phone No. 011- 
42541234; Fax No. 42541204; e-mail: 
info@alankit.com; as R&TA for both modes. 

14. The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual 
Report 2014-15 is being sent by electronic 
mode to those Members whose e-mail 
addresses are registered with the Company / 
Depositories, unless any Member has 
requested for a physical copy of the same. 
For Members who have not registered their e-
mail addresses, physical copies are being 
sent by the permitted mode.

15. To support the 'Green Initiative' Members who 

have not registered their e-mail addresses are 
requested to register the same with 
Depositories.

16. Process and manner for members opting 
for e-voting are as under:

In compliance with the provisions of section 
108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
framed there under, the Members are provided 
with the facility to cast their vote electronically, 
through the e-voting services provided by 
National Securities Depositary Ltd (NSDL), on 
all resolutions set forth in this Notice. In order to 
enable its Members, who do not have the 
access to e-voting facility to send their assent 
or dissent in writing in respect of the resolutions 
as set out in this Notice, the Company is 
enclosing a Ballot Form with the Notice. 
Instructions for Ballot Form are given at the 
back of the said form and instructions for e-
voting are given here in below. Resolution(s) 
passed by Members through Ballot Forms or e-
voting is / are deemed to have been passed as 
if they have been passed at the AGM.

The instructions for e-voting are as under:

A. In case a Member receives an e-mail from 
NSDL (for Members whose e-mail addresses 
are   registered with the Company/Depository 
Participants):

i. Open the e-mail and also open PDF file namely 
“CCL International e-voting.pdf” with your 
Client ID or Folio No. as password. The said 
PDF file contains your user ID and password 
for e-voting. Please note that the password is 
an initial password.

ii. Open the internet browser and type following 
U R L : h t t p s : / / w w w . e v o t i n g . n s d l .                                                                                                                                                        
Com.

iii. Click on Shareholder – Login.
iv. If you are already registered with NSDL for e-

voting then you can use your existing user ID 
and password.

v. If you are logging in for the first time, please 
enter the user ID and password provided in the 
PDF file attached with the e-mail as initial 
password.

vi. The Password Change Menu will appear on 
your screen. Change to a new password of 
your choice, making sure that it contains a 
minimum of 8 digits or characters or a 

combination of both. Please take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential.

vii. Once the e-voting home page opens, click on 
e-voting> Active Voting Cycles.

viii.Select “EVEN” (E-Voting Event Number) of 
CCL International Limited. Now you are ready 
for e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.

ix. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option 
and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted.

x.  Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast 
successfully” will be displayed.

xi. Once the vote on the resolution is cast, the 
Member shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently.

xii. Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to 
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) of the 
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter, 
etc., together with attested specimen 
s i g n a t u r e  o f  t h e  d u l y  a u t h o r i z e d  
signatory/signatories who are authorized to 
vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to 
richagulati14@gmail.com, with a copy marked 
to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

xiii. In case of any queries, you may refer the 
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) - 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual - 
Shareholders, available at the downloads 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com.

B. In case a Member receives physical copy of 
the Notice of AGM (for Members whose email 
addresses are not registered with the 
Company/Depositories):

i. Initial password is provided in the enclosed 
ballot form: EVEN (E-Voting Event Number), 
user ID and password.

ii. Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to Sl. No. 
(xiii) above, to cast vote.

C. Other Instructions:

i. The remote e-voting period commences on 
Sunday, September 27, 2015 (9.00 a.m. IST) 
and ends on Tuesday, September 29, 2015 
(5.00 p.m. IST). During this period, Members 
of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 
the Cut-off Date of Monday, September 21, 
2015, may cast their vote electronically.  The 
e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for 
voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution 
is cast by the Member, he shall not be allowed 
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to change it subsequently.

ii. Miss. Richa Gulati, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No. 11283) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer 
to scrutinize the e-voting process (including the Ballot Form received from the Members who do not have 
access to the e-voting process) in a fair and transparent manner.

iii. The Scrutinizer shall, within a period not exceeding three working days from the conclusion of the e-voting 
period, unblock the votes in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company 
and make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of 
the Company.

iv. Members who do not have access to e-voting facility may send duly completed Ballot Form (enclosed with 
the Annual Report) so as to reach the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, 
Miss. Richa Gulati, Practicing Company Secretary, (CP No. 11283), on the Registered Office of the 
Company not later than Tuesday, September 29, 2015 (5.00 p.m. IST). 

The Scrutinizer will collate the votes downloaded from the e-voting system and votes received through 
post to declare the final result for each of the Resolutions forming part of the Annual General Meeting 
Notice.

A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or by Ballot. If a Member casts 
votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and Ballot shall be treated as invalid.

v. The Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The Results declared, along with the 
Scrutinizer's Report, shall be placed on the Company's on the website within two (2) working days of 
passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the Company and communicated to the Stock Exchanges where 
the Company is listed, viz. BSE Ltd. 

        
Place: Delhi                                                                                                          By Order of the Board of Director
Date:02.09.2015

(RAMA GUPTA)
Managing Director 

Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 
2013 ('the Act'), the following Statement sets 
out all material facts relating to the business 
mentioned under Item Nos. 5 to 8 of the 
accompanying Notice dated 2nd September 
2015.

Item No. 5:
As the members are aware, in terms of Section 
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 
2014, the Company is required to carry out the 
Cost Audit relating to “Work Contract”. 

M/s. Neeraj Sharma & Co, Cost Accountants 
have been appointed as the Cost Auditors of 
the Company for the Financial Year 2015-16 by 
the Board of Directors, in its meeting held on 
1st September 2015, on the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee of the Company. The 
Board has fixed remuneration of 20,000/- P.A 
(Rupees Twenty Thousand only) exclusive of 
applicable service tax and out-of-pocket 
expenses subject to the ratification by 
shareholders.

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, the remuneration of the Cost 
Auditors as fixed by the Board of Directors 
shall be ratified by the members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) or relatives of Directors and 
KMP is concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in this Resolution.

The Board recommends the Resolution for 
approval of the members as an Ordinary 
Resolution.

Item No. 6:

Mr. Akash Gupta (DIN 01940481) has been an 
Executive Director of the Company since 
4thOctober, 2008. In terms of Section 196 & 
197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Act as amended or re-enacted from 
time to time, read with Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Act, Mr. Akash Gupta is 

proposed to be appointed as a Managing 
Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of 
the Company for a period of five years from 
30.09.2015 to 29.09.2020 subject to the 
approval of shareholders. 

A brief profile of Mr. Akash Gupta is given 
below: 

Mr. Akash Gupta holds a Bachelor's Degree in 
Computer Applications. He joined the 
Company on 04.10.2008 and has over 5 years 
of experience in the construction industry and 
business operations. 

He is expert in maintaining harmonious 
relationship with workers, managers & sites in 
charge. He has been involved in the 
management of the Company ever since its 
inception and has played an active role in its 
development. With almost 5 years of 
experience, he is the key person behind the 
execution of the company's projects.

Under his leadership, the Company has 
emphasized on diversi f ied business 
operations, which were majorly placed in the 
infrastructure sector. 

The main terms and conditions of appointment 
of Mr. Akash Gupta (hereinafter referred to as 
“MD & CEO”) are given below:

A. Tenure of Appointment: 

The appointment of the MD & CEO is for a 
period of five years with effect from 30.09.2015. 

B. Nature of Duties: 

The MD & CEO shall devote his whole time and 
attention to the business of the Company and 
perform such duties as may be entrusted to him 
by the Board from time to time and separately 
communicated to him and exercise such 
powers as may be assigned to him, subject to 
the superintendence, control and directions of 
the Board in connection with and in the best 
interests of the Company and the business of 
one or more of its associated companies, 
including performing duties as assigned to the 
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MD & CEO from time to time by serving on the 
Boards of such associated companies or any 
other executive body or any committee of such 
company. 

C. Remuneration: 
a. Basic Salary: 

The Basic Salary payable to Mr. Akash Gupta 
would be Rs. 70,000 per month with effect 
from 1st April, 2015.  

The annual increments which will be effective 
1st April each year, will be decided by the 
Board based on the recommendations of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
(“NRC”) or by the NRC on authority of the 
Board and will be performance-based and 
take into account the Company's performance 
as well. 

b. Benefits, Perquisites and Allowances:

The others Benefits, Perquisites and 
allowance would be also revised with effect 
from 1st April, 2015. The   Details of Benefits, 
Perquisites and Allowances are as follows: 

i. Currently, the company is paying only Rs. 
10,000 monthly as conveyance allowance to 
Mr. Akash Gupta.

C. Minimum Remuneration: 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
herein contained, where in any financial year 
during the tenure of the MD & CEO, the 
Company has no profits or its profits are 
inadequate,  the Company wi l l  pay 
remuneration by way of Salary and 
conveyance Allowances not exceeding the 
ceiling limit prescribed in Schedule V of the  
Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time 
to time as minimum remuneration and in case 
the Company pays in excess of the said limits 
as specified in the Schedule V during the 
stated period, then the payment of excess 
remuneration shall be subject to the approval 
of Central Government (Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs).

D. Other terms of Appointment: 

(i) The MD & CEO shall not become interested or 
otherwise concerned, directly or indirectly, in 

any selling agency of the Company. 

(ii) The terms and conditions of the appointment of 
the MD & CEO may be altered and varied from 
time to time by the Board as it may, in its 
discretion deem fit, irrespective of the limits 
stipulated under Schedule V to the Act or any 
amendments made hereafter in this regard in 
such manner as may be agreed to between the 
Board and the MD & CEO, subject to such 
approvals as may be required.

 
(iii) The agreement may be terminated by either 

party by giving to the other party six months' 
notice of such termination or the Company 
paying six months' remuneration in lieu 
thereof.

(iv) The employment of the MD & CEO may be 
terminated by the Company without notice or 
payment in lieu of notice:

a.  if the  MD & CEO is found guilty of any 
gross negligence, default or misconduct in 
connection with or affecting the business of the 
Company or associated company to which he 
is required to render services; or 

b. in the event of any serious repeated or 
continuing breach (after prior warning) or non-
observance by the MD & CEO of any of the 
stipulations contained in the Agreement;

 
(v) Upon the termination by whatever means of the 

MD & CEO employment: 

a.  the MD & CEO shall immediately cease to 
hold offices held by him in any associated 
companies without claim for compensation for 
loss of office; 

(vi) If and when the Agreement expires or is 
terminated for any reason whatsoever, the MD 
& CEO will cease to be the MD & CEO. 

The Board commends the Resolution at Item 
No. 6 for approval by the Members. 

Mr. Akash Gupta is interested and concerned in 
the Resolution mentioned at Item No.6 of the 
Notice. Other than Mr. Akash Gupta, no other 
Director, key managerial personnel or their 
respective relatives are concerned or 
interested in the Resolution mentioned at Item 
No.6 of the Notice.

Item No. 7:

The Authorized Share Capital of the company as 
reflected in the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association as on date is Rs.33,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees Thirty Three crore) divided into 
16,50,00,000 (Sixteen Crore & Fifty Lac ) equity 
shares of face value of Re. 2/- (Rupees Two) 
each. The Board of Directors of the Company 
subject to requisite approval and consent 
resolved to consolidate 5 (Five) Equity Shares of 
Company of the face value of Re. 2/- each into 1 
(One) Equity share of the face value of Rs. 10/- 
each and consequently alter the Clause V of the 
Memorandum of Association and Articles of 
Association.

In order to maintain uniformity in the nominal 
value of the company's equity shares with the 
nominal value of equity shares of other Mid Size 
Infrastructure Companies such as KNR 
Constructions Limited, C & C Constructions 
Limited, Valecha Engineering Limited, Ramky 
Infrastructure Ltd, Simplex Projects Ltd, etc. The 
Board of directors of the company resolved to 
take steps for consolidation of the company's 
equity shares of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two) each into 
shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees ten) each.

Further the Board of Directors has considered 
consolidating the share capital of the Company 
from Rs. 2 per share to Rs. 10 per share resulting 
in decrease in total number of issued shares and 
increasing the scope of trading.

The approval is sought to be given to the Board of 
Directors of the Company to fix record date and 
issue fresh Equity Share certificates of the 
denomination of Rs. 10/- each to the members in 
place of existing Equity Shares of Re.2/- each. In 
case of members having fractional shares not 
divisible by 10/- the same will be transferred to a 
trust which will be formed by the Board for this 
purpose. All the fractional shares will be 
transferred as on the record date. The trustee(s) 
will consolidate the fractional shares transferred 
to it and will sell the total shares. The proceeds 
from the total shares will be paid to the respective 
shareholders after deducting the expenses 
incurred in this regard, if any. The said resolution, 
if passed, will have the effect of allowing the 
Board to all such matters and deeds as are 
necessary to affect the said matter.

Considering the above, The Board of Directors of 
the Company recommends the Resolution for 
your approval. None of the Directors and any key 

managerial person and their relatives is 
considered to be concerned or interested in the 
aforesaid Special resolution.

Item No. 8:

The Board appointed Mr. Mukesh Kumar 
Sharma, (DIN 03468219), as Additional Director 
with effect from March 21, 2015. The Board has 
also appointed him as a Professional Director 
effective the same date, for a period of three 
years, subject to the approval of the Members. As 
per the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, he 
holds office of Additional Director only up to the 
date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
of the Company, and is eligible for appointment 
as Director. The Company has received a notice 
under Section 160 of the Act proposing his 
candidature for the office of Director of the 
Company, along with the requisite deposit. 

A brief profile of Mr. Mukesh Kumar Sharma is 
given below:

Mr. Mukesh Kumar Sharma holds a Degree of BE 
(Civil).   He has an in-depth knowledge of the 
construction industry as well as strong leadership 
and decision-making skills. Additionally, having 
experience dealing with finances and budget 
management to enable projects to be completed 
on time and on budget. He will be proved a 
reliable Construction Manager to plan 
construction projects and oversee their progress 
along the way in a timely and cost-effective 
manner. He will be responsible for budgeting, 
organization, implementation and scheduling of 
the projects.

Accordingly the Board recommends the passing 
of the Ordinary Resolution as set out in the Item 
no.8 of the Notice.

 
Mr. Mukesh Kumar Sharma is interested and 
concerned in the Resolution mentioned at Item 
No. 8 of the Notice. Other than Mr. Mukesh 
Kumar Sharma, no other Director, key 
managerial personnel or their respective 
relatives are concerned or interested in the 
Resolution mentioned at Item No.8 of the Notice.

Place: Delhi                By Order of the Board of    
                                                                    Director

Date:02.09.2015

(RAMA GUPTA)
Managing Director 
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Details of Directors seeking Re-appointment as Director & 
Appointment as Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer at the 

Annual General Meeting:
(In pursuance of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

Details of Directors seeking Appointment at the Annual General Meeting:
(In pursuance of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

Nam e of Director M r. M ukesh Kum ar S harm a 

Date of B irth/ Ag e 01/01/1966 / 49 Yrs 

Date of Appoin tm ent 21/03/2015 

Qual ifications B E (C ivil) 
Expertis e in specific functional Area H e h as an overall experience of 15 years exclusiv e experience in the 

construction , eng ineering  and architectura l industry. He has vast 
kno wledg e o f managem ent of m ultiple rela ted projects  directed 
tow ard strategic bus iness an d o ther org anizationa l objectives.  He is an  
expert in pub lic rela tion ship & com m unication  with stak eho lders  at 
m ultiple levels,  includin g those externa l to the organization and to  
m anag e cos t, schedule, and perf orm ance of com ponent pro jects.  
Additiona lly,  hav ing experience dea ling wi th f inances and budget 
m anag em ent to enable projects  to be com pleted on tim e and on  
bud get.   

Dir ectorship held in othe r public 
Com pa nies 

NIL 

Com m itte e Positions  held in  CCL  NIL 

Com m itte e Positions  in other 
Public Com pa nies  

NIL 

Num ber of  Shares  h eld NIL 

 

Name of Director Mr. Akash Gupta 

Date of Birth/ Age 29.03.1989/26 Yrs. 
Date of Appointment 04/10/2008 

Qualifications He has completed his B. Tech in Computer Science from a reputed 
institute of Greater Noida. 

Expertise in specific functional 
Area 

He is expert in maintaining harmonious relationship with workers, 
managers & sites in charge. He has been involved in the management of 
the Company ever since its inception and has played an active role in its 
development. With almost 4 years of experience, he is the key person 
behind the execution of the company’s projects. 

Directorship held in other public 
Companies 

M/s. Aishvarya Steels Limited 
M/s. AAR Securities Limited 

Committee Positions held in CCL Nil 

Committee Positions in other 
Public Companies 

Nil 

Number of Shares held 5582750 (5.82%) 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
The Members,
CCL INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
 

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting the 24th Annual Report together with Audited Financial 
Statement of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2015

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The working results of the company for the year under review are summarized as below

Particular   Current 

Year 

  
31.03.2015

 

Previous 

Year 

  
31.03.2014
 

Sales & Other Income
 

9492.45
 

8019.52
 

Profit Before Depreciation , Interest & Tax  
 

390.99
 

310.70
 

Less: 

 

Interest

 

Depreciation & Amortization

 

 

112.09

 

127.89

 

 

58.09

 

113.43

 

Profit/(Loss)Before Tax

 

151.01

 

139.18

 

Provisions

 

-

 

Provision for Taxation       

 

-

 

Provision for

 

Current year

 

Deferred Tax Liability

 

 

30.21

 

18.11

 

 

28.12

 

11.90

 

Profit/(Loss) after Tax

 

102.69

 

99.15

 

Appropriations

 

-

 

Profit Brought Forward from Previous Year

 

-

 

Excess Depreciation Charges adjusted in 

Reserve & Surplus

 

& Prior period Adjustment 

 

-

 

Proposed Dividend

 

-

 

Corporate Dividend Tax (CDT)

 

 

403.76

 

47.00

 

 

(47.98)

 

(7.78)

 

 

360.37

 

0.00

 

 

(47.98)

 

(7.78)

 

Profit/(Loss) Carried to Balance Sheet

 

497.69

 

403.76

 

 

(Rs. In Lacs)

2. COMPANY PERFORMANCE:

The year under review, there has been a 
tremendous increase in the profitability. The 
Profit after Tax is increased by 3.57% to Rs. 
102.69 Lacs as compared to 99.15 Lacs in the 
last year. As far as turnover of the Company is 
concerned, there has been significant increase 
during the year under review. The sales and 
other income have touched Rs. 9492.45 Lacs 
showing an increase of 18.36% as compared to 
the previous year Rs. 8019.52 Lacs. Out of the 
disposable surplus of 403.76 Lacs, a sum of Rs. 
47.98 Lacs has been kept for dividend and Rs. 
7.78 for Corporate Dividend Tax at the end of the 
year 2015.

Your directors are exploring the possibilities for 
diversification and expansion of the business 
activities of the Company and are taking 
necessary steps accordingly. 

3. BUSINESS OPERATIONS:

The year 2014-2015 has been a great year for the 
company in terms achieving the goals set out in 
the beginning of the year. The company was not 
only able to carry out its current ongoing projects 
in a very efficient manner but was also able to 
acquire new projects in a range of field. In the 
2014-15 year, the company majorly focused on 
its infrastructure sector. The directors feel 
immense pleasure in stating that the company 
now has a good foot hold in the infrastructure 
development industry with its many projects 
going on in the state of Meghalaya, Assam and 
Mizoram, & Nagaland, etc. It's a proud moment 
for the Company knowing that our efforts are 
being appreciated and recognized all over the 
nation and even outside India.

This year company has decided to be an EPC 
contractor using German Technology edge of 
Road Construction. The company has decided 
bid for numerous of projects like NHIDCL, NHAI 
& MORTH all over country.

Our other business being Trading of Steels, Non-
Ferrous Metals, Fabrics, Cements have also 
proved to be profitable for the company. It is 
needed to be pointed out that during the relevant 
previous year revenue generation from the 
Trading sector was significantly higher if 
compared with revenue generation from 
Infrastructure sector, even when the revenue 
collected from the Infrastructure sector has 
increased from previous year.

The Directors have proved in the past that they 
believe in diversification in doing business, as the 
company is already involved in various business. 
Further, the company has stepped in power 
distribution sector for construction of 132,220KV 
substation in U.P. & Bihar. This shows company's 
growth in different sectors of Infrastructure, 
Power and Irrigation, etc.

The Directors and the management are 
tremendously proud of its employees for 
continuing to perform their duties in such a 
balanced nature, making it possible for the 
company to smoothly perform its operational 
activities. Other factors which contributed for 
smooth performance of companies operational 
activities can be noted to be better price 
realization, richer product mix and effective & 
efficient work efforts. During the relevant 
previous year 2014-2015, the Company's 
operating and financial performance has 
established a new milestone. Also as required 
under the Accounting Standards, segment-wise 
financial statements and calculation of earnings 
per share is made a part of the Annual Report.
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DIVISIONS OF BUSINESS

The company is consistently working in the field of trading of Iron & Steel, Cotton Fabrics, etc.  We offer 
durable and high Strength angles of all sizes which is also available as per client specification. Our products 
range includes: Angle, Beams, Channel, TMT, HR Coil & Sheets, etc. Our range is available at industry 
leading to our clients.

We want to inform you that the Company feels great pleasure to have been able to achieve this consistency 
in its work efforts and ethics. 

1. CHIRAWA COMMODITIES

2. CORE CONCRETE PRODUCTS

Concrete Pipes are one of the very important elements in every infrastructure establishment and we feel 
proud to have been able to contribute in this process by providing good quality Concrete pipes. The 
company has now successfully completed one year of manufacturing & supplying of concrete pipes.  

We are amongst one of the well known Suppliers of a huge array of Industrial RCC Pipes, used in diverse 
purposes such as, under railway tracks, roads, culverts, sewerage & national highways.

We also provide a wide range of RCC Hume Pipes, RCC Polyethylene Lined Pipes & RCC Jacking Pipes, 
which are listed below:

Ÿ· RCC Hume Pipes having diameter ranging from 150 mm to 2400 mm.

Class Specifications are: NP2, NP3, and Np4.

· The RCC Polyethylene Pipes having diameters ranging from 600mm to 1800mm and has a difference of 
200mm.

· The RCC Jacking Pipes manufactured by us is of superior quality and comes in diameter variations of 
600mm to 1800mm.

These pipes find application in fields that are mentioned below:

· Trench less lying of Water Lines 
· Sewerage Lines

These pipes are manufactured by the process of Vibration Vertical Casting Technology and are lined by P.E. 
of thickness that ranges from 1.5mm to 3mm. 

Ÿ Cotton Fabrics
Ÿ Whole Spices
Ÿ Iron & Steel

CHIRAWA 
COMMODITIES

CORE CONCRETE 
PRODUCTS

Ÿ Hume Pipes
Ÿ Poles
Ÿ Cable Pipes

CRETEROADS 
CONSTRUCTION
Ÿ Concrete Roads
Ÿ Asphalt Roads
Ÿ Access Roads
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3. CRETEROADS CONSTRUCTION

The Infrastructure Development Division of the company is called by the name CRETEROAD 
CONSTRUCTION. This division focuses on the construction/re-construction and designing/re-
designing of new as well as existing roads. For the purposes of such constructions company uses highly 
distinguished German Technology called “EVOCRETE”.

“Evo Crete” is a unique formulation which provides for modification of soil making it appropriate for road 
construction. It is used for complete solidification of any soil type which has zero or negligible 
aggregates. Under this technology a mechanized recycler or as also called a soil stabilizer is used for 
integrating an additive to the soil. Even a Ready Mix Cement plant tested & tried on more than 5.0 Million 
Sq. Meters world over is being used as per road or pavement design leading to best in class ready to use 
traffic roads. In brief we can say that the German Technology provides for a soil stabilization technique 
which binds the soil with adequate quantity of cement and water ensuing in development of solid 
concrete slab.

We would also like to share the areas where we use the material named EvoCrete. A list of which is 
shown on the following page.

 

The company began working with the German Technology in the year 2012-2013. Using this technology 
last two year and since then the Company has bagged various infrastructure development projects 
operational in many parts of the country which are based on this very same German Technology. The 
Company has brilliantly used its management skills and expanded its reach in the field of real estate and 
infrastructure development activities. The Company has also undertaken the projects of development of 
low cost housing at affordable rates; the Company is also involved in providing techno-commercial 
consultancy to infrastructure projects.

EvoCrete - AREAS OF USES
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The Infrastructure division of the Company is mainly engaged in the construction of public infrastructure 
development and due to this in the present time it has become a major contributor towards the Company's 
revenues. The public infrastructure development projects include construction of New Roads and 
Highways and repair work for those already in existence as well as repairs and maintenance of other public 
works such as toll bridges, high-rise buildings, dams, civil engineering structures, soil, highway pavements, 
tunnels, water containment structures, sewers, roofing, and housing in India and now abroad as well. This 
segment includes the mining, construction and installation of utility distribution systems for water and sewer 
mains, Construction of Pavement traffic signals and highway lighting. 

For Construction of Building, the Company uses: cement, concrete reinforcement, bricks and mortars, 
additives, corrosion technology, ceramics, timber, steel, polymers, glass fibers, recycled materials and by-
products, sealants, adhesives.

We also want to share with our shareholders that the company has successfully bagged some new projects 
overseas during the course of this year. We consider this a new achievement of the company and hope to 
complete these projects with full efficiency and effectiveness.

Reconstruction of weak SPT Bridge No. 3/1, 5/2 to permanent 
Double Lane RCC Bridge on Ampati Puraskshasia Road under 
Additional Central Resources (A.C.R).

• Region : Meghalaya
• Sector : Bridge
• Value : 3.89 Cr.

Construction of Road from Betasing to Mellim (15.360 KM)

• Region : Meghalaya
• Sector : Road
• Value : 21.15 Cr.

Reconstruction of weak SPT Bridge No.8/3, 25/3 & 25/5 to 
permanent Double Lane RCC Bridge on Ampati Puraskshasia Road 
under Additional Central Resources (A.C.R).

• Region : Meghalaya
• Sector : Bridge
• Value : 4.31 Cr.

Improvement & Up gradation of E&D Bundh (old A.T Road) from Ch. 
5717.00 m to Ch. 7717.00 m (Garal-Palasbari Uparhali Road) under A.P 
(General Area) for the year 2014-15 under Guwahati Road.

• Region : Assam
• Sector : Road
• Value : 2.42 Cr.

Improvement of Existing MDR Road from Tuipuibari-Wkawnpuri 
(Total length 18.00 Km) in the state of Mizoram under ISC for 2013-14

• Region : Mizoram
• Sector : Road
• Value : 22.86 Cr.

FUTURE PROJECTS

ON GOING PROJECTS

Construction of Ampati Purakhasia  Road 28.00 Km.

Reconstruction of weak SPT Bridge No. 27/1, 27/7 & 28/4 to permanent Double 
Lane RCC Bridge on Ampati Puraskshasia Road under Additional Central 
Resources (A.C.R).

• Region : Meghalaya
• Sector : Bridge
• Value : 6.65 Cr.

Strengthening & Improvement of riding quality on Songsak-Mendipather(40 Km ) Up 
gradation Major District Road at Portion from 0.00 to 11th Km & 36th to 39.626 Km 
(New Technology)

• Region : Meghalaya
• Sector : Road
• Value : 20.28 Cr.

Improvement including widening to double lane on songsak - 
Mendipathar Road (12th -26th) = 15.00 KM
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4. Material Changes in Business Operations:
Firstly, the company shifted its registered office 
from 30, Bharti Artist  Colony, Main Vikas Marg, 
New Delhi to M-4, Gupta Tower, B 1/1, Commercial 
Complex, Azadpur, Delhi with effect from 
09.02.2015. 

Secondly, on 04.08.2015, the board had divested 
its entire stake of 50% Ownership Interest held in 
M/s. Shree Bankey Behari RCC Products Private 
Limited.

5. Transfer to Reserve
During the year under review,  the company has not 
transferred any amount to General Reserve.

6. Number of Meeting of Board of Directors
Pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
framed there under, 14 Board Meetings were held 
in the financial year 2014-15. The details of the 
meeting are at Corporate Governance Report 
forming part of this Annual Report.

7.   Audit Committee
The Company had duly constituted Audit 
Committee. The composition of Audit committee is 
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report. 
The recommendations made by the Audit 
Committee are accepted by the Board.

8. Fixed Deposits:

The Company has not accepted any deposits from 
public. There are no unclaimed or unpaid deposits 
as on 31st March, 2015.

9. .Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or 
Investments under Section 186

The Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments 
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the 
Financial Statements forming part of this Annual 
Report.

10. Adequacy of Internal Control System:

The company has proper and adequate system of 
Internal Control to monitor proper recording of 
transaction according to policies and procedures 
laid down by the company. The company regularly 
monitors that all regulatory guidelines are complied 
with at all levels. 

The Audit Committee constituted by the Board 
reviews the adequacy of Internal Control System. 
The Internal Auditors' Report dealing with the 

internal control system is considered by the 
Audit Committee and appropriate actions 
are taken wherever deemed necessary. 

11. Dividend:

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a 
Dividend of Rs. 0.05 per equity share (2.5%) 
for the FY'15 amounting to Rs. 47, 98,150 
for approval of the Members.

A Dividend of Rs. 0.05 per equity share 
having face value of Rs. 2/-  as 
recommended by the Board, if declared at 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, 
will be paid to those members on or before 
Thursday, 29th October, 2015 to those 
Members:

(a) Whose names appear as Beneficial Owners 
at the end of the business hours on, Monday, 
21st September, 2015 in the list of Beneficial 
Owners to be furnished by the Depositories 
(NSDL and CDSL) in respect of the shares 
held in electronic form; and 

(b) Whose names appear as Members on the 
Company's Register of Members after 
giving effect to valid Transfer requests in 
physical form lodged with the Company or 
its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) 
on or before Monday, 21st September, 
2015.

No tax at source shall be deducted from the 
dividend amount payable to the members. 
Corporate Dividend Tax will be paid by the 
company at the applicable rate on the total 
amount of dividend payable by the 
company.

12.The details of Conservation of Energy, 
Technology Absorption, Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo under 
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 

A Conservation of Energy:   

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy Nil 

(ii)
 

The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate 

sources of energy
 

Nil
 

(iii)
 

The capital investment on energy conservation equipments
 

Nil
 

B
 

Technology A bsorption:
  

(i)

 

The efforts made towards technology absorption

 

N/A

 

(ii)

 

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost 

reduction, product development or import substitution

 N/A

 

(iii)

 

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 

three ye ars reckoned from the beginning of the financial 

year)

 

a.

 

The details of technology imported

 

b.

 

The year of import

 

c.

 

Whether the technology been fully absorbed

 

d.

 

If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not 

taken place, and the reasons thereof

 

N/A

 

(iv)

 

The

 

expenditure incurred on Research and Development

 

N/A

 

C.

 

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:     

 

(Rs. In cr.)

 

  

2014-15

 

2013-14

 

 

a) Foreign Exchange earnings

 

0.00

 

0.00

 

 

b) Foreign Exchange outgo

 

2.21

 

2.02

 

13.Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associates

The company has not any subsidiary companies or joint venture. The details of associates companies 
are depicted as under:
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S 

No

Name & Address of 

the

Company
 

CIN/GLN Holding/

Subsidiary/

 

Associate
 

% of

Shares

 

held
 

Applicable

Section

1 Sybly Industries Limited L17111UP1988PLC009594  Associate  21.49%  2(6)

2 Shree Bankey Behari 

RCC Products Pvt. Limited 

U26922DL2008PTC179842  Associate  50%  2(6)

3 Dimension Consulting 

Private Limited
 

U74120MH2012PTC227208
 

Associate
 

30%
 

2(6)



Also, there was no company which have become 
or ceased to be the subsidiaries/joint 
ventures/associates company (ies) during the 
year.

14. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The CSR provisions were not applicable on the 
company during the year under review.

15. Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Krishan Kumar Sharma has resigned from the 
directorship of the Company w.e.f 06.09.2014, on 
reaching the retirement age under the guidelines 
for the retirement age of Directors adopted by the 
Company. The Directors wish to place on record 
their appreciation of the valuable services 
rendered by Mr. Krishan Kumar Sharma during his 
tenure as Director of your Company.

Mr. Mukesh Kumar Sharma, (DIN 03468219) who 
has been appointed by the Board of Directors as 
an Additional Director of the Company with effect 
from March 21, 2015 and who holds office upto the 
date of this Annual General Meeting of the 
Company in terms of Section 161 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Shivam Agrawal has been appointed as the 
Chief Financial Officer of the company by the 
board of directors in its meeting on August 14, 
2015 as per the provisions of Companies Act, 
2013.

Mr. Devendra Kumar Tyagi, (DIN 07070279) has 
resigned from the directorship of the Company 
w.e.f  September 1, 2015.

16.  Declaration by an Independent Director(s) 

All the Independent Directors have given 
declaration regarding their compliance of 
conditions of sub-section 6 of section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in the first board meeting of 
the FY 2014-15 as per the provisions of sub-
section 7 of section 149 of the said Act. No 
independent director has been reappointed by the 
Company.

17. Prevention of Insider Trading:

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 
Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to 
regulate trading in securities by the Directors and 
designated employees of the Company. The Code 
requires pre-clearance for dealing in the 
Company's shares and prohibits the purchase or 

sale of Company shares by the Directors and 
the designated employees while in possession 
of unpublished price sensitive information in 
relation to the Company and during the period 
when the Trading Window is closed. The Board 
is responsible for implementation of the Code. 
All Board of Directors and the designated 
employees have confirmed compliance with the 
Code.

18. Significant and material orders

There are no significant and material order 
passed by the regulator or court or tribunal 
impacting the going concern status and 
operations of the company

19. Vigil Mechanism Policy

Details of Vigil Mechanism Policy is mentioned 
in Corporate Governance Report.

20. Risk Management

Details of development and implementation of 
Risk Management policy is mentioned in 
Corporate Governance Report.

21. Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration ('NR') 
Committee of the Company has formulated a 
policy for Director's, KMP and other employees. 
They have also developed the criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes 
and independence of a Director and 
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the 
remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees.

The detail has been mentioned in Corporate 
Governance Report forming Part of the Annual 
Report.

22.Annual Evaluation- Board and its 
Committees

The Nomination and Remuneration ('NR') 
Committee has laid proper criteria and 
procedure to evaluate and scrutinize 
performance of the Chairperson, each Director 
(Including Executive, Non-Executive and 
Independent Director), of the Board as a whole 
and its Committee. The details has been 
mentioned in Corporate Governance Report 
forming Part of the Annual Report.

23.Policy against Sexual and Workplace 
harassment

The Company believes in providing opportunity 
and key positions to women professionals. It has 
been the Endeavour of the Group to encourage 
women professionals by creating proper policies 
to tackle issues relating to safe and proper 
working conditions for them and create and 
maintain a healthy and conducive work 
environment free of discrimination. 

During the year under review there were no case 
filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal ) Act, 2013.

24.  Related Party Transactions:

None of the transactions with related parties falls 
under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Act. 

25. Managerial Remuneration and Particulars of 
Employees

Details of Managerial remuneration required 
pursuant to Section 197 and Rule 5 (1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed 
as Annexure-A.

As per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 there is no employee in the 
Company who is Employed for full year and in 
receipt of remuneration more than ` 60,00,000/- 
per year or part of the year and receiving 
remuneration proportionately.

26. Extract of the Annual Return

As provided under Section 92(3) of the Act, The 
extract of the Annual Return is given in 
“Annexure B” in prescribed form MGT-9, which 
forms part of this report.

27. Auditors and Auditors' Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the 
Act and the rules framed thereunder, M/s. KPMC 
& Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm 
Registration No. 005359C), who were appointed 
as statutory auditors of the Company from the 
conclusion of the 23rd Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) of the Company held on September 30, 

2014 till the conclusion of the 28th AGM to be 
held in the year 2019, subject to ratification of 
their appointment at every AGM.

The notes to accounts appearing in the schedule 
and referred to in the Auditors' Report are self 
explanatory.

28. Secretarial Audit Report

The Board had appointed M/s. Richa Gulati, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, Ghaziabad as 
Secretarial Auditor pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Report of the Secretarial Auditor is annexed to 
the Report as per Annexure 'C'.

29. Listing with Stock Exchanges:

The Company is listed at Bombay Stock 
Exchange Ltd and Delhi Stock Exchange Ltd and 
confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees 
for the year 2015-2016 to BSE Ltd. where the 
Company's shares are listed.

30. Corporate Governance:

Your Company's Corporate Governance 
philosophy esteems from the belief that 
corporate governance is a key element in 
i m p r o v i n g  e f f i c i e n c y,  t r a n s p a r e n c y,  
accountability and growth as well as enhancing 
investor's confidence.

The Company is committed to maintain the 
highest standards in Corporate Governance so 
as to ensure highest level of transparency to 
meet the stakeholders 's expectations. The 
Corporate Governance Report for the year 
ended March 31, 2015 forms part of this report as 
Annexure- E.

A detailed analysis of the Company's 
performance is discussed in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report, annexed to this 
report and forms part of this Report.

31. Directors' Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of 
their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating 
to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting 
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policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit and loss of the company for that period;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
e)  the directors,  had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and
f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

32. Acknowledgements:

Your directors take this opportunity to offer their sincere thanks and gratitude to:

1. The bankers of the company as well as other Financial Institutions for the financial facilities and support.

2. Business associates, vendors/contractors, shareholders, employees and esteemed clients for their unstinted 
support and assistance.

The Board also takes this opportunity to express their sincere appreciation of the efforts put in by the 
employees at all levels for achieving the results and hopes that they would continue their sincere and 
dedicated endeavors towards achieving better working results during the current year.

By Order of the Board of Director 
Place : Delhi
Dated : 02.09.2015

                                                         (RAMA GUPTA)
                                                    Managing Director

ANNEXURE-A

Pursuant to Section 197 and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of   Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014

Sl. No. DisclosureRequirement

The ratio of the remuneration of each director 
to the median remuneration of the employees 
of the company for the financial year 2014-15;

Only Mr. Akash Gupta (Executive Director of the 
company) is drawing salary of 50,000/- pm, No other 
director was remunerating. 

Hence, Ratio of Remuneration of Director v/s 
Median Employee  Remuneration is 6.2:1.

1.

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of 
each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or 
Manager, if any, in the financial year;

a. Directors –Nil
b.  MD -Nil
c. CEO -Nil
d.  Company Secretary - 15%
e. Manager –NA

3. The percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees in the financial 
year; 

The median remuneration of the employees in the 
financial year was increased by 14.29%

4. The number of permanent employees on the 
rolls of company; 

There were 87 employees in the Company as on 
March 31, 2015

5. The explanation on the relationship between 
average increase in remuneration and 
company performance;

The increase in remuneration is in line with the market 
trends. In order to ensure that remuneration reflects 
company performance, the performance pay is linked 
to organization performance.

6. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key 
Managerial Personnel against the performance 
of the company; 

Variations in the market capitalisation of the 
company, price earnings ratio as at the closing 
date of the current financial year and previous 
financial year and percentage increase over 
decrease in the market quotations of the shares 
of the company in comparison to the rate at 
which the company came out with the last 
public offer in case of listed companies, 

For the FY 2014-15, KMPs were paid approximately 
5.80% of the profit before tax.

Particular As on 
31.03.2015

As on 
31.03.2014

Variation

Closing rate of 
share at BSE (Rs.)

315.00 177.95 77.00%

EPS (Rs.) 0.11 0.10 10.00%

Market Capitaliza-
tion(in lakhs)

105.55 95.96 77.01%

Price earnings 
ratio

2863.00 1779.50 60.89%
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7. Average percentile increase already made in 
the salaries of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial year 
and its comparison with the percentile increase 
in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are 
any exceptional circumstances for increase in 
the managerial remuneration; 

Average increment for Managerial Personnel : 2.14%

Average Increment for non Managerial Personnel: 
10.01%

No exceptional increase given for any managerial 
personnel

8. Comparison of the each remuneration of the 
Key Managerial Personnel against the 
performance of the company;

Only Mr. Akash Gupta (Executive Director of the 
company) is drawing salary of 50,000/- pm, No other 
director was remunerating. 

9. The key parameters for any variable 
component of remuneration availed by the 
directors;

NA

10. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest 
paid director to that of the employees who are 
not directors but receive remuneration in 
excess of the highest paid director during the 
year; and 

NA

11. The remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

ANNEXURE – B 

Form No. MGT - 9 

Extract of Annual Return
 

As on Financial year ended on 31.03.2015
 

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2 013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
 

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

 I

 

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS

 I

 

CIN

  

L26940DL1991PLC044520

 Ii

 

Registration Date

 

04/06/1991

 Iii

 

Name of the Company

 

CCL International Limited

 
Iv

 

Category/Sub -category of the

 
Company

 

Company Limited by Shares

 
Indian Non -Government Company

 
V

 

Address of the Registered

 

office & contact details

 

M-4, Gupta Tower, B 1/1, Commercial Complex, 

Azadpur, New Delhi -

 

110033

 

Vi

 

Whether listed company

 

Listed

 

Vii

 

Name

 

Address

 

contact detail s of the

 

Registrar & Transfer Agent,

 

If any.

 

Alankit Assignments Limited

 

Alankit House, 4E/2, Jhandelwalan Extension, New 

Delhi-110055.

 

Ph No. +91 -11 -4254 1234/ 2354 1234; Fax : +91 -11 -

2355 2001

 

Email :info@alankit.com 

 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: - 

S 

NO.
 

Name & Description of main products / 

services
 

NIC Code of the 

Product/ Service
 

% to total 

turnover of the 

company

 
1.

 

Infrastructure Division

   (a)

 

Civil Engineering

 

Works / Work contract 

operations

 

9953211

 

25.42%

 

(b)

 

Land/ Plots/Residential Units Commercial 

Complex

 

99531110

 

0.58%

 
2.

 

Trading Division

   

 

Ferrous & Non Ferrous items

 

99651254

 

74.00%

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
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S 

No

Name & Address of 

the

Company 

CIN/GLN
 

Holding/
 

Subsidiary/ 

Associate 

% of
 

Shares 

held 

Applicable

Section

1 Sybly Industries Limited

 
L17111UP1988PLC009594

 
Associate

 
21.49%

 
2(6)

2 Shree Bankey Behari 

RCC Products Pvt.Limited

 

U26922DL2008PTC179842

 

Associate

 

50%

 

2(6)

3 Dimension Consulting 

Private Limited

 

U74120MH2012PTC227208

 

Associate

 

30%

 

2(6)
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f) Insurance Companies.



Sl. 

No 

Shareholders 

Name 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

Shareholding at the 

end of the year 

% change 

in share 

holding 

during 

the year 

  No 

of 

shares 

% of 

total 

share

s 

of the 

comp

any 

% of 

shares 

pledged 

encumb

ered to 

total 

shares 

No   of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

share

s 

of the 

comp

any 

% of shares 

pledged 

encumbere

d to total 

shares 

 

1 Akash Gupta 5582750 5.82 1000000 5582750 5.82 1000000 - 

2 Anil Kumar 5035000 5.25 - 4957100 5.17 - -0.08 

3 Anil Kumar(HUF) 2000000 2.08 - 2000000 2.08 - - 

4 M/s. Fort 

Fertichem Sales 

Pvt. Ltd. (#) 

- - - 3969400 4.14 - 4.14 

5 Jyoti Gupta 161250 0.17 - 161250 0.17 - - 

6 Priya Gupta 171250 0.18 - 171250 0.18 - - 

7 Rama Gupta  5286673 5.51 - 5191807 5.41 - -0.10 

8 Sunita Gupta 11250 0.01 - 11250 0.01 - - 

9 Varun Gupta 161250 0.16 - 161250 0.17 - - 

10 Tanvi Fincap (P) 

Ltd. 

8288634 8.64 - 20421399 21.28 - 12.64 

11 M/s. Karnam 

Trade Ventures 

Pvt. Ltd. 

1515000 1.58 - - - - -1.58 

 Total 28213057 29.40 1000000 42627456 44.42 1000000      15.02 

 

II. SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS & PROMOTER GROUP

(#) By virtue of Amalgamation of Tanvi Fincap Private Limited and its group companies, M/s. Fort 
Fertichem Sales Private limited has become a subsidiary of M/s. Tanvi Fincap Private Limited. In 
pursuant to this,   M/s. Fort Fertichem Sales Private Limited falls under the Promoter Group of CCL.
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(iii)  CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' & PG SHAREHOLDING 

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS,  
           PROMOTERS & HOLDERS OF GDRS & ADRS)

 At the beginning of the year  5035000 5.25 5035000  5.25 

 07.01.2015  Sale 10000 0.010 5025000  5.23 

 08.01.2015  Sale 10000 0.010 5015000  5.22 

 14.01.2015  Sale 6500 0.007 5008500  5.22 

 02.02.2015  Sale 7000 0.007 5001500  5.21 

 03.02.2015  Sale 7500 0.008 4994000  5.20 

 04.02.2015  Sale 5000 0.005 4989000  5.20 

 06.02.2015  Sale 7500 0.008 4981500  5.19 

 19.02.2015  Sale 5500 0.006 4976000  5.18 

 20.02.2015  Sale 4850 0.005 4971150  5.18 

 23.02.2015  Sale 7050 0.007 4964100  5.17 

 25.02.2015  Sale 7000 0.007 4957100  5.17 

 At the end of the year  4957100  5.17 

 

3. ANIL KUMAR
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S 

No 

Promoters  Share holding at the  

beginning of the Year  

Cumulative Share holding 

during the year 

  No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company
 

No of 

Shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company
 

1.
 

TANVI FINCAP PRIVATE LIMITED
 

 
At the beginning of the year

 
8288634

 
8.64

 
8288634

 
8.64

 

 
06.11.2014

 
By Virtue of 

Amalgamation
 

12132765
 

12.64
 

20421399
 

21.28
 

 

At the end of the year
 

20421399
 

21.28
 

2.

 

RAMA GUPTA

 

 

At the beginning of the year

 

5286673

 

5.51

 

5286673

 

5.51

 

 

12.11.2014

 

Sale

 

10000

 

0.010

 

5276673

 

5.49

 

 

18.11.2014

 

Sale

 

8300

 

0.009

 

5268373

 

5.49

 

 

24.11.2014

 

Sale

 

5000

 

0.005

 

5263373

 

5.48

 

 

25.11.2014

 

Sale

 

5000

 

0.005

 

5258373

 

5.48

 

 

05.12.2014

 

Sale

 

5000

 

0.005

 

5253373

 

5.47

 

 

11.12.2014

 

Sale

 

1000

 

0.001

 

5252373

 

5.47

 

 

15.12.2014

 

Sale

 

5000

 

0.005

 

5247373

 

5.46

 

 

31.12.2014

 

Sale

 

15000

 

0.016

 

5232373

 

5.45

 

 

12.01.2015

 

Sale

 

10000

 

0.010

 

5222373

 

5.44

 

 

27.02.2015

 

Sale

 

5000

 

0.005

 

5217373

 

5.43

 

 

28.02.2015

 

Sale

 

3500

 

0.004

 

5213873

 

5.43

 

 

03.03.2015

 

Sale

 

4251

 

0.004

 

5209622

 

5.43

 

 

04.03.2015

 

Sale

 

2700

 

0.003

 

5206922

 

5.42

 

 

05.03.2015

 

Sale

 

1115

 

0.001

 

5205807

 

5.42

 

 

17.03.2015

 

Sale

 

6000

 

0.006

 

5199807

 

5.42

 

 

19.03.2015

 

Sale

 

8000

 

0.008

 

5191807

 

5.41

 

At the end of the year

 

5191807

 

5.41

 

 

 

 

    

Sl. No. For Each of the Top 10 

Shareholders
 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year
 

Shareholding at the 

end of the year
 

  
No. of 

shares

 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

Company

 

No. of 

shares

 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

Company

 
1.

 

FORT FERTICHEM SALES 

PRIVATE LIMITED

 

3969400

 

4.14

 

0

 

0.00

 
2.

 

DOYEN COMMERCIAL PRIVATE 

LIMITED

 

2600494

 

2.71

 

2600494

 

2.71

 3.

 

NARAYAN BUILDERS PRIVATE 

LIMITED

 

1765000

 

1.84

 

0

 

0.00

 
4.

 

MOHIT JAIN

 

1669967

 

1.74

 

1669967

 

1.74

 

5.

 

WESTERN SUPER HOTICULTURE 

MARKETS LIMITED 

 

1555000

 

1.62

 

0

 

0.00

 

6.

 

SHREE JI IMPEX PRIVATE 

LIMITED

 

1514770

 

1.58

 

0

 

0.00

 

7.

 

WESTERN FINCAP LIMITED

 

1511068

 

1.57

 

0

 

0.00

 

8.

 

ULTRA TECH PRODUCTS 

PRIVATE LIMITED

 

1460269

 

1.52

 

0

 

0.00

 

9. WESTERN OVERSEAS PRIVATE 

LIMITED

1313160 1.37 0 0.00

10. TEJAWANI  INFRASTRUCTURE 

PRIVATE LIMITED

1193531 1.24 1193531 1.24



Sl. 

No 

 Shareholding at the 

Beginning of the year 

Shareholding at the 

end of the year 

 For Each of the Directors & 

KMP  

No. of 

Shares 

% of  total 

shares of the 

company 

No of  

shares  

 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

Directors 

1. Akash Gupta 5582750 5.82 5582750 5.82 

2. Rama Gupta 5286673 5.51 5191807 5.41 

3. Anil K um ar 5035000 5.25 4957100 5.17 

4. Kr ishan Kumar Sharma Nil Nil Nil Nil 

5. Arv ind Sharma Nil Nil Nil Nil 

6. M ool Chand Garg Nil Nil Nil Nil 

7. Hari Om Agarwal Nil Nil Nil Nil 

8. M ukesh Kum ar Sharm a Nil Nil Nil Nil 

9. Devendra Kumar Tyagi Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Key Managerial Personnel 

10. Shivi Sharma Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

V.  SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

VI. INDEBTEDNESS

VII. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR AND/
 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OR MANAGER:

S. 

No. 

Particulars of Rem un eratio n Nam e o f th e 

MD/W T D/M an ag er/Exec

utive D irecto r 

To tal Am o un t 

1 G ross salar y Akash G up ta 

[Execu tive Director] 

 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

Sect ion17(1) of the Income T ax, 1961 

Rs. 40,000/-  pm Rs.4,80,000 P A 

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of  the 

Inc om e tax A ct,  1961 

- - 

 (c ) P rofits  in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

- - 

2 Stock opt ion - - 

3 Sweat Equity - - 

4 Comm is sion as %  of prof it 

others (specify) 

- - 

5 O thers, p lease specify (Conveyance 

Allowance)  

Rs. 10,000/-  pm Rs. 1,20,000 PA  

 To tal (A) Rs. 50,000/- pm  Rs. 6,00,000 PA 

 Ceilin g as per the Act  7,85,048 PA 

 

VIII. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

S .N o  P art ic ula rs o f 

R e m u ne ra tion  

N a m e  of D ire c to rs  To ta l 

Am ou nt  

1  Ind e pe n d en t D ire c tors  A rv in d S h a rm a  M o o l Ch a n d Ga rg  H a r i O m  Ag a rw a l  

 (a )   F e e  fo r a t te n d ing  

b o a rd / co m m ittee  m e e t in g s 

- - - - 

 (b )  C o m m iss io n  - - - - 

 (c  ) O th e rs, p le as e sp e cify  - - - - 

 T ota l  ( 1)     

2  O th e r N o n E x e c utiv e 

D i re ct ors  

A ni l K um a r    

 (a )  F ee  fo r a tte nd in g  

b o a rd /co m m it te e  m e et ing s 

- - - - 

 (b )  C o m m iss io n  - - - - 

 (c ) O th e rs  p le a se  sp e cif y . - - - - 

 T o ta l ( 2) - - - - 

 T o ta l ( B )= (1 + 2)  - - - - 

 T o ta l M an a g e ria l R e m u ne ra t ion  N IL  

 O v e ral l C e il in g a s  p e r th e A c t. O ne  La c  pe r  b o ard /c o m m it te e m e e tin g  
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Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ac crued but not due for payment  

 Secured Loans  

(excluding 

deposits )
 

Unsecured  

Loans 

Deposits  Total  

Indebtedness  

                                                         
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

 
i) Principal Amount

 
130019477.23

 
-
 

-
 

130019477.23
 

ii) Interest due but not paid
 

0.00
 

-
 

-
 

0.00
 

iii) Interest accrued but not due

 

0.00

 

-

 

-

 

0.00

 

 

130019477.23

 

-

 

-

 

130019477.23

 Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

 Additions

 

32490726.00

 

-

 

-

 

32490726.00

 
Reduction/Re -payment

 

(75113902.34)

 

-

 

-

 

(75113902.34)

 Net Change

 

(42623176.34)

 

-

 

-

 

(42623176.34)

 
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

 
i) Principal Amount

 

87396300.89

 

-

 

-

 

87396300.89

 ii) Interest due but not paid

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 
iii) Interest accrued but not due

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 
Total (i+ii+iii)

 

87396300.89

 

-

 

-

 

87396300.89

 

 



Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total 

Gross Salary CEO CS CFO Total  

(a) Salary as per provisions contained 

in Section 17(1) of the Income Tax 

Act,1961. 

- 23,000/-

Pm 

- 23,000 2,76,000/-

P.A 

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 

- - - - - 

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under 

section 

17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

- - - - - 

Stock Option - - - - - 

Sweat Equity - - - - - 

Commission as % of profit others, 

specify 

- - - - - 

Others, please specify - - - - - 

Total - 23,000/- 

pm 

- - 2,76,000 

P.A 

 

IX. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Type Section 

of the 

Companies 

Act 

Brief 

Description 

 

Details of 

Penalty/Punishment/Com 

pounding fees imposed 

Authority 

(RD/NCLT/Court) 

Appeal 

made if 

any 

(give 

details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

      

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

      

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

 

X. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

           
ANNEXURE-C
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANICAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,
M/s. CCL International Ltd.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to Good Corporate Governance practice by CCL International Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts / statutory compliance and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's Books, Papers, Minutes Books, Forms and Returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit and as per the explanations given to us, we 
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the financial year ended 31st March, 2015, complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under as 
applicable;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 
foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment, External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 ('SEBI Act'):

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2009; 

and   

(vi) We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
a. Secretarial Standards of The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and general 

meetings are yet to be specified under the Act by the Institute.
b. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) & Delhi Stock 

Exchange (DSE)

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, to the extent applicable.
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We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the management, were taken unanimously. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

For Richa Gulati
Company Secretary

Sd//-
Richa Gulati)

(Prop.)
Place: Ghaziabad   
Date: 31 August, 2015 
                                                                                                                                                             ACS No.: 30727
                                                                                                                                                              C.P No.: 11283

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'Annexure D and forms an integral part of this 
report

Annexure-D

To
The Members
M/s. CCL International Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express as opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The Verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of  Accounts of the 
Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Richa Gulati
Company Secretary

Sd//-
Richa Gulati)

(Prop.)
Place: Ghaziabad   
Date: 31 August, 2015 
                                                                                                                                                            ACS No.: 30727
                                                                                                                                                              C.P No.: 11283

17.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Readers are cautioned that this Discussion and 
Analysis contains forward-looking statements that 
involve risks and uncertainties. When used in this 
discussion, the words “anticipate”, believe”, 
“estimate”, intend, “will”, and “expected” and other 
similar expressions as they relate to the Company or 
its business are intended to identify such forward 
looking statements. The Company undertakes no 
obligation to publicly update or revise any forward 
looking statements, whether as a result of 
performances or achievements and risks and 
opportunities could differ materially from those 
expressed or implied in such forward looking 
statements. Readers are cautioned not to place 
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements 
that speak only as of their date. The following 
discussion and analysis should be read in 
conjunction with the Company's financial 
statements included and notes thereto.

BUSINESS OPERATIONS

During the year 2014-2015, the company has 
achieved the goals set out in the beginning of the 
year. The company was not only able to carry out its 
current ongoing projects in a very efficient manner 
but was also able to acquire new projects in a range 
of field. In the preceding year the company majorly 
focused on its infrastructure sector. The directors 
feel immense pleasure in stating that the company 
now has a good foot hold in the infrastructure 
development industry with its many projects going 
on in the state of Meghalaya, Assam. It's a proud 
moment for the Company knowing that our efforts 
are being appreciated and recognized all over the 
nation and even outside India.

Our other business being Trading of Steels, Non-
Ferrous Metals, Fabrics, Cements have also proved 
to be profitable for the company. It is needed to be 
pointed out that during the relevant previous year 
revenue generation from the Trading sector was 
significantly higher if compared with revenue 
generation from Infrastructure sector, even when 
the revenue collected from the Infrastructure sector 
has increased from preceding year.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

The Company during the period under review 

mainly concentrated on the Infrastructure 
business. As a result of which, a substantial 
portion of company's revenues are derived from 
infrastructure projects, these projects provide 
opportunities for large revenue and profit 
contributions. The performance of the Company 
in the current financial year is satisfactory 
considering the challenges faced by the 
construction industry. A comparative study of the 
financial performance of the Company as 
compared to the previous financial year is given 
hereunder:

Share Capital : The Company's paid-up share 
capital stood at Rs. 19, 19, 26,000 as on March 
31, 2015.

Reserves and Surplus : The Company's 
reserves increased from Rs.1674.81 Lacs in 
2013-14 to Rs. 1768.73 Lacs in 2014-15.

Income from Operations : The Company's 
financials reflect sustainable growth across 
market cycles, with a top line growth from  Rs. 
7960.53 Lacs in 2013-14 to Rs. 9434.28 Lac in 
2014-15.

EBIDTA : The Company's EBIDTA increased 
from Rs. 310.71 Lacs in 2013-14 to Rs. 390.99 
Lacs in 2014-15.

Net Profit : The Company's net profit stood at Rs. 
102.68 Lacs in 2014-15.

Gross Block : The Company's gross block 
increased from Rs. 2097.40  Lacs in 2013-14 to       
Rs. 2391.85 Lacs in 2014-15 on account of 
growing project volumes.

RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Your Company presently maintains conservative 
financial profile so as to build its future based on 
sound financial resources.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Opportunities:

India's Planning Commission has projected an 
investment of US$ 1 trillion for the Infrastructure 
Sector during the 12th Five-Year Plan (2012–17), 
with 40 per cent of the funds coming from the 
Country's private sector. India's focus on 
infrastructure since the turn of the millennium has 
helped make it the second fastest growing 
economy in the world.

The Country's constant growth gives investors, 
domestic and foreign, a tremendous opportunity for 
investment in its infrastructure sector. Government 
initiative for development of infrastructure projects 
to boost Indian economy offers further prospects of 
increase in Company's order book.

With an emphasis on infrastructure and updates in 
technology the company is striving to enlarge its 
operations in construction business and attracting 
large value construction projects. 

Threats:

Ÿ Cautious approach of Banks and low exposure 
in Infrastructure Sector;

Ÿ Rising input costs for cement, steel and other 
construction materials;

Ÿ Longer working capital cycle;
Ÿ Shortage of skilled manpower;
Ÿ Stagnant and low construction margins.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Manpower is biggest strength in construction 
sector. Your company maintains its focus on its 
Human Resources. It believes that people's 
contribution is the main engine for growth. We 
deliver on the strength of our people and in a 
dynamic business environment. Company policy 
entrails looking for qualified, talented and 
enthusiastic individuals and building up of a rich 
human resource base. Our HR team focuses on 
employee training, inculcation of values and 
enhancing functional expertise. The key HR objective 
is to ensure that our employees are aware of the role 
they are expected to play in the organization to be 
able to drive organizational momentum.

We have manpower comprises professionals from 
diverse backgrounds like engineering, finance, 
taxation, secretarial, legal, management, business, 
supervisors, operators and sub-staff, skilled and 
semi-skilled workers. The top management 
conducted several discussions with their employees 
to discuss multiple issues towards discussing 
leadership qualities, values, responsibilities, freedom 
to work and take decisions. Going ahead, the 
Company will continue to invest in its people to 
strengthen its delivery model.

All employees are working in harmonious and 
teamwork atmosphere which are at all time high. The 
Company has a team driven work process with 
completely flat organization structure. This not only 
helps us nurture leaders but also give us capable and 
assured colleagues at all levels. 
 
RISK AND CONCERNS

Your Company recognizes the need to control and 
limit risk, which it faces in day to day course of the 
business. The Company is exposed to certain 
financial risks, principally foreign exchange risk, 
interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk, risks 
associated with the economy, regulations, 
competition among others. These risks are managed 
through risk management policies that are designed 
to minimize the potential adverse effects of these 
risks on financial performance of the Company.

VALUE CREATION

Your Company is continuously striving to create 
value in all spheres of its activities. This 
encompasses not only value for its customers but 
also for its stakeholders. The Company has adopted 
Accounting Standards incorporating best practices 
and have moved towards transparency in its 
reporting .We will continuously endeavor to provide 
insight on the operation of the Company to aid all 
stakeholders. 

The Board would like to place on record its deep 
sense of appreciation for the continued confidence 
reposed in the company by the shareholders as well 
as the sincere efforts put in by the executives and 
staff at all levels for progress of the company.
 

By Order of the Board of Director 
Place : Delhi
Dated : 02.09.2015

(RAMA GUPTA)
Managing Director 
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Corporate Governance is the system by which 
companies are directed and controlled. It is about 
promoting corporate fairness, transparency and 
accountability. We believe that Good Corporate 
Governance is a continuous exercise and it ensures:

Ÿ Transparency in Business Transactions;
Ÿ Adequate disclosures and effective decision 

making to achieve corporate objectives;
Ÿ Statutory and Legal Compliances;
Ÿ Protection of Shareholders' Interest and
Ÿ Commitment to values and Ethical Conduct of 

Business.

Your Company is committed to Good Corporate 
Governance, based on an effective independent 
Board, separation of supervisory role from the 
executive management and the constitution of 
Committees to oversee critical areas thus upholding 
the standards practically at every sphere ranging 
from action plan to performance measurement and 
consumer satisfaction.

1. Company's Philosophy on Code of 
Governance
 
The Company is committed to executing sustainable 
business practices and creating long-life value for all 
its stakeholders. To pursue this objective, the 
Company is conducting its business based on the 
highest standards of Corporate Governance which 
resulting in an adequate value systems that 
incorporates integrity, transparency and fairness 
across all of its business activities.

The Company is engaged in construction activity and 
rendering good quality construction services to strive 
for continues improvement in all other areas to create 
value that can sustain over a long term for all its 
shareholders, employees, customers, government 
and others.

The Company continues to focus on its 
commitments towards the development of the 
community where it operates. It has adopted best 
practices towards preserving the environment 
and adherence to the highest safety standards 
remains a focus area across all operations. 
Company's value systems are based on the 
foundation of fair and ethical practices in all its 
dealings with stakeholders including customers, 
vendors, contractors, suppliers and all others 
who are part of the Company's business value 
chain.

The Company is committed to taking business 
decisions that are ethical and in compliance with 
the applicable laws. By combining ethical 
principles with business acumen, the Company 
aims to maintain its leadership position.

2. The Board

A) Board Procedure

Ÿ Meetings

A Detail Agenda is sent to each Director in 
advance of Board and Committee meetings to 
enable the directors to discharge their 
responsibilities effectively. During the financial 
year 2014-15, the Board met 14 Times. The 
maximum time gap between any two consecutive 
meetings was not more than 120 days. The Board 
meets at least once in every quarter to review and 
approve the quarterly financial results in 
compliance with Clause 41 of the Listing 
Agreement along with other items on the agenda. 
Additional Board meetings are held, as and when 
necessary. Requisite information has been 
placed before the Board for its consideration. The 
quorum was present in all the meetings. The 
Details of Board Meetings held during the 
Financial Year   2014-15 are as follows:
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As mandated by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, none of the Directors on Board is a member of 
more than ten Board-level committees and Chairman of more than five such committees, across all such 
Companies in which he is a Director.

B)  Company's Board 

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings held during the year and the Last Annual General Meeting 
(AGM), and number of other Directorships and Chairmanships/Memberships of Committees of each 
Director in Various Companies are as follow

S. No.

 

Date Of Meeting

 

Total Members

 

Attended By

 

1.

 

05.04.2014

 

7

 

4

 2.
 

01.05.2014
 

7
 

7
 3.  30.05.2014  7 7 

4.
 
23.06.2014

 
7

 
5

 

5.
 

11.07.2014
 

7
 

5
 

6.

 

14.08.2014

 

7

 

7

 

7.

 

06.09.2014

 

7

 

7

 

8.

 

11.10.2014

 

6

 

4

 

9.

 

14.11.2014

 

6

 

6

 

10.

 

16.01.2015

 

6

 

5

 

11.

 

27.01.2015

  

3

 

12.

 

09.02.2015

 

7

 

4

 

13.

 

14.02.2015

 

7

 

6

 

14.

 

21.03.2015

 

7

 

3

 

6

Name & Designation Financial Year
2014-15 
Attendance at   

No. of Directorships in 
others companies as on 
31.03.2015 

No. of Committee 
positions held in other 
public companies as on 
31.03.2015 

Relationshi
p Inter se 

 Board 
Meeting 

Last 
AGM 

Listed Others  Chairman Member  
Public Private  

Executive Directors 
Rama Gupta 
(Promoter,       Managing 
Director) 

14 Yes Nil 2 1 Nil Nil Related as 
Mother of  
Akash Gupta 

Akash Gupta 
(Promoter,         Executive 
Director) 

14 Yes Nil 2 6 Nil Nil Related as 
son of Smt. 
Rama Gupta 
& Anil Kumar 

Non Executive Director 
Anil Kumar (Promoter, 
Non Executive Director 

14 Yes Nil 2 11 Nil Nil Related as 
husband of 
Smt. Rama 
Gupta &
Father of
Akash Gupta 

Independent Directors 
Arvind Sharma        Non-
Executive, Independent 
Director 

10 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Not related 
to any
Director 

Krishan Kumar Sharma*                     
Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 

5 N/A Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Not related 
to any
Director 

Mool Chand Garg 
Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 

8 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Not related 
to any
Director 

Hari Om Agarwal  
Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 

8 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Not related 
to any
Director 

Additional Directors 
Devendra Kumar Tyagi 
(#) 

N/A N/A Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Not related 

to any 

Director 

Mukesh Kumar Sharma 
(̂ ) 

N/A N/A Nil Nil 2 Nil Nil Not related 

to any 

(*)Mr. Krishan Kumar Sharma had resigned at the Board Meeting held on September 6, 2014.
(#)Mr. Devendra Kumar Tyagi had resigned at the board meeting held on September  1, 2015.
 (^) Mukesh Kumar Sharma appointed as Additional Director (Professional Director) at the board 
meeting held on March 21, 2015.

Board Meeting
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Independent Directors

Your Company appointed Independent Directors who are renowned people having expertise/experience in their 
respective field/profession. None of the Independent Directors are Promoters or related to Promoters. They do 
not have pecuniary relationship with the Company and further do not hold two percent or more of the total voting 
power of the Company.

Every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he participates as a Director and thereafter 
at the first meeting of the Board in every financial year, gives a declaration that he meets the criteria of 
independence as required under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement.

All Independent Directors maintain their limits of directorships as required under Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement. The Company had issued a formal letter of appointment to all Independent Directors. 

Details of Equity Shares held by the Directors

 The details of the Equity Shares held by the Directors as on March 31, 2015 is given in below table:

(*)Mr. Krishan Kumar Sharma had resigned at the Board Meeting held on September 6, 2014.
(#)Mr. Devendra Kumar Tyagi had resigned at the board meeting held on September 1, 2015.
 (^)Mukesh Kumar Sharma appointed as Additional Director (Professional Director) at the board meeting held on 
March 21, 2015.

Information to the Board

A detailed agenda folder is sent to each Director in advance of the Board Meetings. As a policy, all major 
decisions involving investments and capital expenditure, in addition to matters which statutorily require the 
approval of the Board are put up for consideration of the Board. Inter alia, the following information, as may be 
applicable and required, is provided to the Board as a part of the agenda papers:

• Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates
• Quarterly, Half yearly and annual results of the Company.
• Minutes of the Meetings of the Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board.
• Information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the Board level.
• Materially important show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, if any.
• Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution problems.

S.No.
 

Name of Director
 

No. of Shares Held
 1.

 
Rama Gupta

       
5191807

 2.
 
Akash Gupta

 
5582750

 
3.  Anil Kumar  4957100 
4.  Arvind Sharma  NIL 

5.  Krishan Kumar Sharma (*) NIL 

6.
 
Mool Chand Garg

 
NIL

 

7.
 
Hari Om Agarwal

 
NIL

 

8.
 

Devendra Kumar Tyagi (#)
 

NIL
 

9.

 

Mukesh Kumar Sharma (^)

 

NIL

 

• Any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company, or substantial non-
payments by clients.

• Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual 
property.

• Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions. Any significant development in 
human resources or on the industrial relations front such as signing of wage agreement, etc.

• Sale of material nature, of investments, assets, which are not in the normal course of business.
• Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and members' service such 

as delay in share transfer, etc.

a) Reviews

The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company, prepared by 
the Management as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, if any. 
Further, The Board regularly reviews inter-alia, industry environment, annual business plans, project 
implementation, Finance and operations, sales & marketing, major business segments, business 
opportunities including investments/ divestment, compliance process including material legal issues, 
strategy, risk management practices, approval of quarterly/half-yearly/annual results and compliance 
reports on all laws applicable. Senior executives are invited to provide additional inputs at the Board 
meetings for the items discussed by the Board of Directors, as and when required.

b) Minutes
The draft minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors are circulated in advance and the 
observations, if any, received from the Directors are incorporated in the minutes in consultation with the 
Chairman and signed at the subsequent meeting upon confirmation.

c) Follow-up
The Company has an effective post meeting follow-up, review and reporting process for the 
decisions taken by the Board. The significant decisions of the Board are promptly communicated to 
the concerned departments. Action taken reports on decisions of the previous meeting(s) are placed 
at the immediately succeeding meeting for review by the Board

d) Performance Evaluation
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the 
Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors 
individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Board Committees. A structured questionnaire 
was prepared after circulating the draft forms, covering various aspects of the Board's functioning such 
as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and 
performance of specific duties, obligations and governance.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was done by the entire Board excluding the 
Directors being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman, Board as a whole and the Non-
Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Board of Directors expressed 
their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

e) Familiarization Programmes for Board Members
Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Board Committee Meetings, on business and 
performance updates of the Company. The Familiarization Programme Module is available on the 
Company's website. 
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C. Board Committees

The Board has constituted the following Committees and each Committee has their terms of reference 
as a Charter. The Chairman of each committee along with the other Members of the Committee and if 
required other Members of the Board, decide the agenda, frequency and the duration of each meeting 
of that Committee. Currently, the Board has at the end of the year three committees:

1. Audit Committee
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Stakeholder's Relationship Committee

(i) Audit Committee

The Board has a well constituted Audit Committee which is in accordance with the Listing Agreement and the 
Companies Act, 2013. The role, term of reference, authority and powers of the Audit Committee are in conformity 
with the Listing Agreement and the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Committee of the Company, inter-alia, 
provides assurance to the Board on the existence and adequacy of an effective internal control systems that 
ensures:-
 
· Efficiency and effectiveness of operations
· Safeguarding of assets and adequacy of provisions for all liabilities.
· Reliability of all financial and other management information and adequacy of disclosures.
· Compliance with all relevant statutes.

1. Composition 

The Audit Committee comprises of Five Members from whom three are Independent Directors & one is Executive 
Director. The Composition of Audit Committee during the Financial Year 2014-15 was as follows:

All Members are financially literate and have the required accounting and financial management 
expertise.

2. Terms of Reference

Ÿ Overseeing of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 
information to ensure that the financial Statements are correct, sufficient and credible. 

Ÿ · Recommendation to the board, the appointment, reappointment (including their terms) or 
replacement of statutory auditors and the fixing their audit fees.

Committees 
of Board

S.No Name Position Category of Membership 

1. Hari Om Agarwal Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director 

2. Rama Gupta Member Executive Director 
3. Anil Kumar Member Non-Executive Director 

4. Mool Chand Garg Member Non-Executive Independent Director 

5. Arvind Sharma Member Non-Executive Independent Director 
 

Ÿ Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

Ÿ Reviewing, with management, the annual financial Statement and Auditors' Report thereon before 

submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Directors Responsibility Statement in the Director's Report in 

terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the Company's 

management;

d. Any significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other legal or regulatory requirements relating to financial information.

f. Disclosure of any 'related party transactions and review, and approve any transactions with related 

party.

Ÿ Reviewing with the management the quarterly financial information before submission to the                   

 Board for approval.

Ÿ Reviewing with management the performance of statutory auditors and the adequacy of the internal 

control systems of the Company.

Ÿ

Ÿ Examination of the financial statements and auditors' report thereon; 

Ÿ Reviewing the Company's financial & risk management policies

Ÿ Carrying out any other functions as the board may from time to time refer to the Audit committee

Ÿ Reviewing the Management Discussion and Analysis of the financial conditions and results of   

operations.

3. Powers of Audit Committee

Ÿ Audit Committee shall have following powers:-

Ÿ To investigate any activity within its terms of reference

Ÿ To seek any information from any employee

Ÿ To obtain outside legal or other professional advice

Ÿ To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if considered necessary.

Ÿ

4. Meetings and Attendance

The Audit committee had met 5 times during the Financial Year 2013-2014. The 
attendance of the meetings is as under:
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S.No Name of the Director No. of Meetings 
attended 

Dates of Meetings 

1. Hari Om Agarwal 5 
 

30.05.2014 
14.08.2014 
14.11.2014 
16.01.2015 
14.02.2015 

2. Rama Gupta 5 30.05.2014 
14.08.2014 
14.11.2014 
16.01.2015 
14.02.2015 

3. Anil Kumar 5 30.05.2014 
14.08.2014 
14.11.2014 
16.01.2015 
14.02.2015 

4.  Mool Chand Garg 4 
 
 

30.05.2014 
14.08.2014 
14.11.2014 
14.02.2015 

5. Arvind Sharma 5 30.05.2014 
14.08.2014 
14.11.2014 
16.01.2015 
14.02.2015 

 

(ii) Nomination and Remuneration (NR) Committee

The  NR Committee has been constituted by the Board to determine and review from time to time the  
criteria  for determining qualifications, positive attributes and  Independence of a Director and 
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees including making payments to Non Executive Directors of the Company 
and make recommendations of the same to the Board. Such recommendations are made considering 
the overall performance and annual financial results of the Company.

The Board constituted a  NR Committee pursuant to Clause 49 of Listing Agreement and section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.  The role, term of reference, authority and powers of the NR Committee are in 
conformity with the requirements listing agreement and the Companies Act, 2013.

1. Composition

The Committee comprised of Four Non Executive Directors from whom three are Independent and one 
is Non-Executive Director. The Chairman of the Committee is a Non- Executive Independent Director 
nominated by the Board. The power and role of the  NR Committee is as per  Listing Agreement and the 
Companies Act, 2013.

The Composition of  NR Committee during the Financial Year 2014-15 was as follows

 
S.No Name Status Category of Membership 

1 Mool Chand Garg Chairman Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

2  Arvind Sharma Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

3 Anil Kumar Member Non Executive Director 

4. Hari Om Agarwal Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

2. Terms of Reference

The Broad terms of reference of the  NR Committee are:-
· To review and decide the policy on specific remuneration package payable to Executive/ Managing 

Director of the Company.
· Determining remuneration packages payable to key managerial personnel of the Company.

3. Meetings and Attendance

The  NR Committee had met 2 times during the Financial Year 2014-2015. The attendances of the meetings 
are as under:

S.No Name of the
Director 

No. of Meetings 
attended 

Dates of Meetings 

1 Mool Chand Garg 2 30.05.2014 
14.11.2014 

2  Arvind Sharma 2 30.05.2014 
14.11.2014 

3. Anil Kumar 2 30.05.2014 
14.11.2014 

4 Hari Om Agarwal 2 30.05.2014 
14.11.2014 

 

4. Remuneration Policy:

The Company's remuneration policy is based on the principles of (i) pay for responsibility (ii) pay for 
performance and potential and (iii) pay for growth. Keeping in view the above, the NR Committee is 
vested with all the necessary powers and authorities to ensure appropriate disclosure on remuneration 
paid to the Executive Director of the Company. The Remuneration Policy applies to the Company's 
senior management, including its Key Managerial Persons and Board of Directors and other 
employees.

The Remuneration policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company 
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(iii) Stakeholder's Relationship ('SR')  Committee:

The SR Committee has been constituted to specifically look into the redressal of Shareholders' 
and Investors' complaints and other Shareholders related issues.

The Company has a  SR Committee consisting of Sh. Arvind Sharma as its Chairman, and other 
members being Smt. Rama Gupta, Hari Om Agarwal & Sh. Mool Chand Garg. This Committee is 
vested with full powers and authorities to look after share transfer as well as redressal of 
Investor's grievances. The Committee also oversees the performance of Registrar & Transfer 
Agent (Demat mode) and recommends the measures for overall improvement in the quality of 
Investor services. 

1. Composition

The SR Committee comprises of Four Members from whom three are Independent Director & one 
is Executive Director. The Composition of  SR Committee during the Financial Year 2014-2015 
was as follows:

S.No Name Status Category of Membership 

1. Arvind Sharma Chairman Non-Executive, Independent Director 

2. Hari Om Agarwal  Member Non- Executive, Independent Director 
3. Rama Gupta Member Executive Director 

4. Mool Chand Garg Member Non-Executive , Independent Director 
 
2    Terms of Reference

The Committee approves & oversees the following matters:
a. Matters relating to transfer, transmission, dematerialization and re-materialization of 
shares.
b. Approve issue of duplicate and split of share certificates as and when required
c. Redressal of shareholders'/ investors' complaints / grievances including transfer of 
shares, 

non-receipt of Annual Report  etc. 

The Committee also reviews performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and 
recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services. With a view 
to expedite the process of share transfer etc., on fast track basis, the Board has delegated the 

Remuneration to Directors

The Details of Remuneration paid to Executive Director during the Financial 
Year ended 31st March 2015.

Name/age(Yrs)  Salary 
(Rs.)  

Perquisites 
and other 
Benefits  

Commission  Total (Rs.)  Service contracts, 
notice period, 

severance fees.  

Stock 
Option  

Akash Gupta (26)  4,80,000  1,20,000  NIL  600000 /-   NIL  
 

-

S.No Name of the Director No. of Meetings 
attended 

Dates of Meetings 
 

1 Arvind Sharma 4 30.05.2014 
14.08.2014 
14.11.2014 
14.02.2015 

2. Hari Om Agarwal 4 30.05.2014 
14.08.2014 
14.11.2014 
14.02.2015 

3. Rama Gupta 4 
 

30.05.2014 
14.08.2014 
14.11.2014 
14.02.2015 

4. Mool Chand Garg 4 30.05.2014 
14.08.2014 
14.11.2014 
14.02.2015 

 

The Details of shareholders quarries/complaints received during the financial year are given as 
below:

No. of Investors 

quarries/complained in the year 

2014-15. 

Pending at the end of 

year 

No. of pending 

share transfer 

NIL NIL NIL  

 

MS. Shivi Sharma Company Secretary of the Company is designated as Compliance Officer

powers of approving share transfer etc. to the legal & Secretarial department.

3.  Meetings and Attendance

The  SR Committee had met 4 times during the Financial Year 2014-2015. The attendance of the 
meetings is as under:
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4. DISCLOSURE

a. Related Party Transactions

During the year, no materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company 
of material nature, have been entered into by the Company with its promoters, Directors or the 
management, or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at 
large.

The policy on materiality of related party transactions as approved by the Board is available on the 
Company's website.

b. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the 
Company by the Stock Exchange(s) or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related 
to capital markets, during the last three years

No penalty, or stricture was imposed by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other authority, during 
the last 3 (three) years, since all applicable requirements were fully complied with.

c. Accounting treatment in preparation of Financial Statements

The guidelines/ accounting standards laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
and prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements of the Company in all material respects.

d. Whistle Blower Policy 

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy which incorporates Vigil 
Mechanism for establishing a mechanism for employees to report to the management concerns about 
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or ethics 
policy. The Vigil Mechanism Policy may be accessed on the Company's website

e. Code of Conduct for the Directors  & Senior Management Personnel

The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct (“Code”) for all the Board Members and Senior 
Management personnel of the Company. All Board members and senior management personnel have 
affirmed their compliance with the Company's Code of conduct for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2015. A declaration to this effect signed by Mrs. Rama Gupta, Managing Director of the Company, forms 
a part of this Report as Annexure -E.

f. Compliance of Prohibition of Insider Trading Regulations

Your Company has comprehensive guidelines on prohibiting insider trading and the Company has 
adopted the code of internal procedures and conduct for listed companies notified by the SEBI.

g. Risk Management 

In order to ensure that Management controls risk through means of a properly defined framework, a 
report on Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure as prepared by functional heads of the 
Company is being reviewed periodically by the Board of Directors.

h. All mandatory requirements as per Clause 49 have been complied with by the Company.

i. Disclosure Regarding Directors appointment or reappointment of directors

According to the provisions of Companies Act 2013 read with Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 
Akash Gupta director of the company is liable to retire by rotation at forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting, who is being eligible for reappointed as the directors of the Company. Given below is the brief 
resume of all Directors pursuant to clause 49 of the listing Agreement:
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b. General Body Meeting

The details of location and time for last three Annual General Meeting are given as under

Year Location Date Time 

2011-12 Plot No. 6C , Mandawali, Fazalpur, Delhi-92 29th Sept.2012 11:30 A.M 

2012-13 Plot No. 6C , Mandawali, Fazalpur, Delhi-92 30
th 

Sept. 2013 11:30 A.M 
2013-14 Plot No. 6C , Mandawali, Fazalpur, Delhi-92 30th Sept. 2014 01:00 P.M 

 

Financial year  Date of Declaration  Amount remaining Unclaimed/Unpaid as on 
31.03.2015  

2011-12  30.09.2012  107,870.46/-  
2012-13  30.09.2013  70,883.10/-  

2013-14  30.09.2014   
 

1462,68.75/-

All resolutions moved at the last Annual General Meetings were passed by the mode as permitted under 
Companies Act and the Listing Agreement. None of the items to be transacted at the ensuing meeting is 
required to be passed by postal ballot.

c. Details of Special Resolutions Passed In Previous Three Annual General Meetings

The details of Special Resolutions passed in previous three Annual General Meetings are given us 
under:

Year  Description of Special Resolution Date of Passing 

2011-12 Appointment of Mr. Hari Om Agarwal as a 

Director 

29-09-2012 

2012-13 NIL NIL 

 

 

2013-14 

Appointment of Mr. Arvind Sharma as an 

Independent Director 

 

 

30.09.2014 
Appointment of Mr.Mool Chand Garg as an 

Independent Director 

Appointment of Mr. Hari Om Agarwal as an 
Independent Director 

 

Year Description of Resolution Passed Date of Passing 

2011-12 NIL NIL 

2012-13 NIL NIL 

2013-14 NIL NIL 
 

d. Details of Resolutions Passed Through Postal Ballot In Last Three Years
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S.No  Name of Newspaper  Region  Language  

1. Financial Express  Delhi  English  

2. Rashtriya Sahara  Delhi  Hindi  

Governance by Management 

a. The Management Discussion and Analysis Report. 
The Report on Management Discussion and 
Analysis is given separate in this Annual Report.

b. CEO/CFO Certification
The Managing Director have certified to the Board, 
interalia the accuracy of financial statements and 
adequacy of Internal Controls for the financial 
reporting purpose as required under Clause 49(IX) of 
the Listing Agreement, for the year ended 
31.03.2015 and it is attached as Annexure G.

a. Means of Communication
The Company publishes its notices, quarterly and 
Annual Result in following newspaper:

The quarterly financial results from time to time to the 
investors and analysts are submitted to the stock 
exchanges on which the Company's equity shares are 
listed.

 In accordance with the circular issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs on the Green Initiatives and amendment 
in Clause 32 of the listing agreement with stock 
exchanges, the Company will send Annual Report 
containing inter-alia, Audited Financial Statements, 
Directors' Report, Independent Auditors' Report, 
Management Discussion & Analysis Report, Corporate 
Governance Report including information 

Shareholders Information

for the Shareholders, other important information and 
Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting along with 
proxy forms electronically, who have opted for the same. 
Printed copy of the Chairman's Speech is distributed at 
the Annual General Meeting.

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES):  

The investor complaints are processed in a 

centralized web based complaints redressal 

system. The salient features of this system include 

centralized database of all complaints, online 

upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the 

concerned companies and online viewing by 

investors of actions taken on the complaints and 

their current status.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor 

Education & Protection Fund (IEPF)

Under the Companies Act, 2013, dividends which 

remain unclaimed for a period of 7 years are 

required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

& Protection Fund (IEPF) administered by the 

Central Government.

Dates of declaration of dividends since 2011-12 and 

the amount remaining Unclaimed/ unpaid as on 

31.03.2015 are given in the table below. 

(*)Mr. Krishan Kumar Sharma had resigned at the Board Meeting held on September 6, 2014.
(#)Mr. Devendra Kumar Tyagi had resigned at the Board Meeting at the board meeting held on September 1, 2015.
(^)Mukesh Kumar Sharma appointed as Additional Director (Professional Director) at the board meeting held on March 21, 
2015.



h.  Market price data - monthly high/low of the closing price and trading volumes on BSE depicting 
liquidity of the Company's Shares on the said exchange is given hereunder:
Stock Market Data:    

Available at BSE.

(Sources: BSE Website)

Year 2014-15 BSE 

Months High 
(Rs.) 

Low 
(Rs.) 

Volume of Shares 
Traded (Nos.) 

April 2014 
May 2014 
June 2014 
July 2014 
August 2014 
September 2014 
October 2014 
November 2014 
December 2014 
January 2015 
February 2015 
March 2015 

187.95 
305.40 
368.00 
442.50 
443.90 
517.90 
587.80 
630.00 
616.00 
524.50 
510.00 
486.90 

165.50 
173.00 
270.20 
350.00 
397.40 
419.25 
422.00 
430.00 
380.00 
453.00 
421.50 
266.20 

 

             4,02,461 
  13,78,919 

5,70,883 
14,55,551 
18,66,128 
18,92,183 
10,61,928 
19,20,837 
20,82,225 
24,65,955 
28,41,113 
26,58,275 
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General Information for Members

a. The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi. The Corporate Identity Number 
(CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is 
L26940DL1991PLC044520.

b. Annual General Meeting: Date, time , Venue

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

DATE 

 

30th

 

September,2015

 

TIME

 

12:30

 

P.M   

 

VENUE

 

Hotel Golden Palm at Plot No. 6C, Mandawali, Fazalpur, 
Delhi-92

 

S.No.        Results 
 

For Year 31st March 2014
were announced on

For Year 31st March 2015announced/  
will be  announced on #

A First Quarter 14
th August, 2014 14

th
August 2015

B Second Quarter 14th November, 2014 2nd Week of November 2015

C Third Quarter 14th February 2015 2nd Week of February 2016
D Fourth Quarter 30th May, 2015 2nd week of May 2016

  

Script Code:                    

 

531900 

ISIN   INE778E01023 
BSE – Address Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai 400 001 www.bseindia.com
DSE – Address Asaf Ali Road, Delhi

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Clause 35B of the Listing 
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges (BSE), the Company has also extended Remote e-voting 
facility, for its Members to enable them to cast their votes electronically on the proposed resolutions 
in the Notice of the 24th AGM, instead of Voting in the Annual General Meeting. Instructions for e-
voting are listed under the segment “Notes” in the Notice to AGM. Those of the Shareholders/ 
Members, who cannot attend the AGM in person, can appoint a proxy to represent them in the AGM, 
for which the Shareholder/ Member needs to fill in a proxy form and send it to the Company, to its 
Registered Office address, on or before Monday, September 28, 2015.

c. Financial Calendar

Adoption of Quarterly Reports  for the quarter ending:

Within 45 days of the end of the quarter as per latest clause 41 of the Listing Agreement.

d.       Financial Year: 1st April  2014 to 31st March 2015

e. Book Closure: The Book Closure period is from Tuesday, 22nd September, 2015 to 
Wednesday, 30th September 2015 (both days. (Both days inclusive)

f. Dividend Payment Date: On or before 29th October, 2015

g. Listing: The equity shares the Company of the face value of ` 2 each (fully paid) are listed 
on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd, Delhi Stock Exchange Association Limited.



i. Shares Transfer

The Company has entered into an agreement with M/s. Alankit Assignments Ltd., Delhi to handle Share 
transfer for both physical as well as demat mode. All requests in demat mode are processed in 15 days 
as per stipulation of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 
Limited (CSDL).

j.   Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

Ÿ Pursuant to Clause 47 (c) of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, on half yearly basis, 
certificates have been issued by a Company Secretary-in-Practice for due compliance of share 
transfer formalities by the Company. Further Secretarial Audit is done on a quarterly basis for 
reconciliation of share capital of the Company.

Ÿ A Company Secretary-in-Practice carried out a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to reconcile the 
total admitted capital with NSDL and CDSL and the total issued and listed capital. The audit confirms 
that the total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in 
physical form and the total number of shares in dematerialized form (held with NSDL and CDSL).

S.No Category No. of Shares Held %age of Shareholding 

A Promoters Holding   

1. Promoters 
· Indian Promoters 
· Foreign Promoters 
· Person acting in Concert 

 
42627456 

- 
- 

 
44.42% 

- 
- 

 SUB- TOTAL (A) 42627456 44.42% 

B Non- Promoters Holding   
 Institutional Investors  

· Mutual Funds and UTI 

· Banks, Financial Institutions 
· Insurance companies, central/state 

Govt. Institutions/Non-Government 
Institutions 

· FII’s (others) 

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

144624 

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

0.15% 

 SUB- TOTAL (B) 144624 0.15% 

C Others  
· Private Body Corporate 
· Indian Public 
· NRIs (Including Foreign Company) 
· Trust 

· Foreign Portfolio Investor(Corporate)                                                                            

 
28627025 
24528797 

2 
8000 

27096 

 
29.83% 
25.56% 
0.00% 
0.01% 
0.03% 

 SUB-TOTAL (C) 53190920 55.43% 

 TOTAL (A+B+C) 95963000 100% 
 

Table: 1 : Share Ownership Pattern as on 31st March 2015

Table: 2
Distribution of Shareholding by size  as on 31st March 2015

S.No 
 

Range of Shares 
 

No of Share 
Holders 

% of Share 
Holders 

No of  Shares 
Held 

% of Share 
holding 

 
1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
 

  
   Upto 5000 
   5001-10000 
  10001-50000 
   50001-100000 
  100001-and  above 

 
917 
185 
308 

81 
125 

 
56.75 
11.45 
19.06 
5.012 

7.74 

 
1434440 
1491451 
7345115 
5780360 

79911634 

 
1.50 
1.55 
7.65 
6.02 

83.28 

 Total 1616 100.00 95963000 100.000 
 

k. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The Company's shares are admitted into both the Depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited ('NSDL') and 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited ('CDSL') by the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Alankit 
Assignment Limited, 98.83% of the Company's shares are held in electronic/demat form as on March 31, 2015.

 
Particulars 

 

Number of
Shares 

Percentage (%) 
to Total Capital 
Issued 

Number of
Shareholders 

Percentage 
(%) to Total 
Number of 
Shareholders 

Held in dematerialized mode in NSDL 64991937 67.73 907 56.13 
Held in dematerialized mode in CDSL 29806563 31.06 690 42.70 

Total Demat Segment 94798500 98.79 1597 98.83 
Physical Segment 1164500 1.21 19 1.18 

Total 95963000 100.00 1616 100.00 
 

As on March 31, 2015, the number of shares held in dematerialized and physical mode are as under: 
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 ANNEXURE-E

 Declaration by Managing Director under Clause 49(1) (D) of the Listing Agreement regarding 
compliance with the code of conduct

As per the requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the 
Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for its Board of Directors and Senior Management.

I, Rama Gupta, Managing Director of CCL International Limited hereby declare that all member of the 
board and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliances with the code of conduct, as 
applicable to them for the Year ended March 31, 2015.

Date : 02.09.2015 RAMA GUPTA        
Place: Delhi                        (Managing Director)

l. Outstanding GDR/ADRs/ Warrants or convertibles Instruments:

There are no outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants / Convertible instruments of the Company and 
hence, the same is not applicable to the Company.

ADDRESS for Correspondence Company (For general assistance) 

Registrar (for Demat mode)                                                         Regd Office: 

Alankit Assignment ltd. M-4, Gupta Tower, B 1/1 Commercial Complex, 
Azadpur, New Delhi – 110033. 

2E/21, Alankit House, Jhandwalan Extn. Corporate Office: 

Delhi-110055. C-42, R.D.C, Raj Nagar,Ghaziabad. 
Ph.011-24541234,23541234 Ph. No. 0120-4214258 
 Annexure  G

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 
TO
Board of Directors
CCL International Limited

We, Rama Gupta, Managing Director and Shivam Agrawal, Chief Financial Officer do hereby certify that:

a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31.03.2015 on that date and that to the best 
of our knowledge and belief:

i. the said statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading;

ii. the said statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, 
illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the 
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable 
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls.

d. We have indicated to the auditors and the audit Committee:-
i. That there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year 2014-15
ii. That there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year 2014-15 except Depreciation as per new Companies Act 

2013, whose impact were discussed in notes to accounts, other changes are only grammatical & clarification in nature.
iii. That there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware. 

Rama Gupta
          Managing Director                                                     Chief Financial Officer 

 
Place: Delhi
Date :02.09.2015

Shivam Agrawal

ANNEXURE-F
CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As required by clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Certificate on Corporate Governance is given as annexure to the 
Directors' Report.

TO THE MEMBERS OF CCL INTERNATIONAL LTD.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by CCL International Limited (“the Company), for 
the year ended on 31st March 2015 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with Stock 
Exchanges.

The compliance of condition of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited 
to review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
Statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations made 
by the Directors and the Managements, we certify that the Company has complied the Corporate Governance as stipulated 
in the above-mentioned listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

                                               For KPMC & Associates
                                                Chartered Accountants

                                                           Firm No.005359C 
Date : 02.09.2015 
Place : Delhi

                                                                                 SD/-
                                                              (Sanjay Mehra)
                                                                       PARTNER
                                                                 M No. 075488
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To,
The Members of
CCL INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial 
statements of CCL International Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2015, and the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year 
then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

Management's Responsibility for the 
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible 
for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to 
the preparation & presentation of these 
standalone financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these standalone financial statements based on 
our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the 
Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included in the 
audit report under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the 
disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to 
the Company's preparation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on whether the Company 
has in place an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. An 
aud i t  a l so  i nc l udes  eva lua t i ng  t he  
appropriateness of the accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates made by the Company's Directors, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Standalone financial statements gives 
the information required by the Act in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India:

(a)  In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2015;
(b)  In the case of Statement of Profit and 
Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; 
and
(c)  In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of 
the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirement
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's 
Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in 
the Annexure a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the 
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, 
we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; and
e. On the basis of written representations 

a. The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situations of Fixed 
Assets.

b. The fixed assets have been physically 
verified by the management during the year and 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of 
verification of the fixed assets is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its assets.

2.  In respect of Inventory:

a. The management has conducted 
physical verification of inventory at reasonable 
intervals during the year.

b. The procedures of physical verification of 
inventory followed by the management are 
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business.

c. The Company is maintaining proper 
records of inventory and no material 
discrepancies between physical inventory and 
book records were noticed on physical 
verification.

3. The Company has not granted any loan, 
secured or unsecured to companies, firms or 
other parties covered in the register maintained 
under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) and 3(iii)(b) of the 
Order are not applicable.

4. In our opinion, there is an adequate 
internal control system commensurate with the 
size of the Company and the nature of its 
business for the purchase of inventory and fixed 
assets and for the sale of goods and services. 
During the course of our audit, no major 
weakness has been noticed in the internal 
control system in respect of these areas.

5. The Company has not accepted any 
deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the 
Order are not applicable.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of 
account maintained by the Company pursuant to 
the rules made by the Central Government for 
the maintenance of cost records under sub 
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of 
Company's product and services and are of the 
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed 
accounts and records have been made and 
maintained. 

7.
(i) According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the basis of 
examination of the records of the Company, the 
company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom 
duty, excise duty, TDS, ,value added tax, Cess 
and any other statutory dues with the 
appropriate authorities to the extent applicable. 
There are no undisputed statutory dues payable 
for a period of more than six months from the 
date they become payable as at 31 March 2015.

(ii) According to the information and 
explanations given to us, there are no dues of 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, 
Custom duty, Excise duty and Cess, which have 
not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(iii) No amounts were required to be 
transferred to investor education and protection 
fund. Hence, clause 3 (vii) (c) of the order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

8. The company has no accumulated losses 
at the end of the financial year. Further, the 
company has not incurred cash losses during 
the current financial year and the immediately 
preceding financial year

9. In our opinion, and according to the 
information & explanations given to us, the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues 
to bankers & financial institutions. The Company 
does not have any outstanding debentures 
during the year.

10. As per information and explanations 
given to us, the terms and conditions on which 
the company has not given corporate guarantee 
for loans taken by companies from banks or 

received from the directors, as on   March 31, 
2015 and taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2015 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the other matters to be 
included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any 
litigation on its financial position.

ii. The Company has not made provision, 
as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses, if any, on      long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were 
required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company

For KPMC & Associates
Chartered Accountant

Firm Reg. No. 005359C 

Date: 30.05.2015
Place: Delhi                 (Sanjay Mehra)

Partner
M No. 075488                                                                              

The Annexure referred to in our Independent 
Auditors' Report to the members of the 
company on the standalone financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2015, 
we report that:

1. In respect of Fixed Assets:

Annexure to Auditors' Report
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financial institutions are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the company.

11. On the basis of records made available and according to information and explanations given to 
us, the company has applied its term loans for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

12. Based upon the audit procedure performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view and 
on the basis of the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud on or 
by the company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

For KPMC & Associates
Chartered Accountant

Firm Reg. No. 005359C 

Date: 30.05.2015
Place: Delhi                                         (Sanjay Mehra)

                  Partner        
                                                                                                                                         M No. 075488    
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NOTE 8  FIXED ASSETS in 

Balance as at 

April 1, 2014

Additions Disposals Revaluations/ 

(Impairments)
Balance as at 

March 31, 2015

Balance as at 

April 1, 2014

Depreciation for 

the year as per 

SLM

Adjustment due 

to change of 

method

On disposals Balance as at 

March 31, 2015

Balance as at 

April 1, 2014

Balance as at 

March 31, 2015

Tangible Assets

Lease Hold Land 26,268,585       -                  -              -                 26,268,585             -                       -                         -                       -                  -                      26,268,585       26,268,585          

Free Hold Land & Buildings 41,503,568       15,803,106     -              -                 57,306,674             -                       -                         -                       -                  -                      41,503,568       57,306,674          

Plant and Equipment 131,676,718
     

12,821,397
     

-
              

-
                 

144,498,115
           

16,266,564
           

11,125,369
             

(5,635,201)
           

-
                  

21,756,732
          

115,410,154
     

122,741,383
        

Furniture and Fixtures 634,787

            

-

                  

-

              

-

                 

634,787

                  

361,847

                

60,308

                    

(73,123)

                

-

                  

349,032

               

272,940

            

285,755

               

Vehicles 7,864,158

         

674,453

          

-

              

-

                 

8,538,611

               

3,642,129

             

964,581

                  

(1,230,312)

           

-

                  

3,376,398

            

4,222,029

         

5,162,213

            

Office equipment 809,886

            

113,490

          

-

              

-

                 

923,376

                  

258,195

                

135,944

                  

130,891

                

-

                  

525,030

               

551,691

            

398,346

               

Computer 981,924

            

33,099

            

-

              

-

                 

1,015,023

               

638,022

                

154,306

                  

5,781

                    

-

                  

798,109

               

343,902

            

216,914

               

Total (A) 209,739,627

     

29,445,545

     

-

              

-

                 

239,185,172

           

21,166,757

           

12,440,508

             

(6,801,964)

           

-

                  

26,805,301

          

188,572,869

     

212,379,871

        

Intangible Assets

Goodwill\Trademark\Copyright -

                    

-

                  

-

              

-

                 

-

                          

-

                       

-

                         

-

                       

-

                  

-

                      

-

                   

-

                       

Total (B) -

                    

-

                  

-

              

-

                 

-

                          

-

                       

-

                         

-

                       

-

                  

-

                      

-

                   

-

                      

Capital Work In Progress

Total (C ) -

                    

-

                  

-

              

-

                 

-

                          

-

                       

-

                         

-

                       

-

                  

-

                      

-

                   

-

                      

Intangible assets under 

Development

Total (D) -

                    

-

                  

-

              

-

                 

-

                          

-

                       

-

                         

-

                       

-

                  

-

                      

-

                   

-

                      

TOTAL (A+B+C+D) 209,739,627

     

29,445,545

     

-

              

-

                 

239,185,172

           

21,166,757

           

12,440,508

             

(6,801,964)

           

-

                  

26,805,301

          

188,572,869

     

212,379,871

        

Previous Year (Balances) 113,243,416

     

96,472,582

     

-

              

-

                 

209,715,998

           

10,147,367

           

10,995,761

             

-

                       

-

                  

21,143,128

          

103,096,049

     

188,572,869

        

Note: Change in method of providing Depreciation has been disclosed in the Significant Accounting Policies annexed with the Independent Auditor's Report

Particulars

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
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A. Details of Trade Investments

Sr. 

No.

Name of the Body Corporate Subsidiary / 

Associate / JV/ 

Controlled Entity / 

Others

Quoted / 

Unquoted

Partly Paid / 

Fully paid

Basis of 

Valuation

If Answer to 

Column (9) is 

'No' - 

Basis of 

Valuation

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13)

(a) Investment Properties  

(b) Investement in Equity Instruments

Anamica Portfolio Pvt. Ltd Other 50000 50000 Unquoted Fully Paid 3.00 3.00 1250000.00 1250000.00 As per AS-13

Anamica Financial Pvt. Ltd Other 50000 50000 Unquoted Fully Paid 2.81 2.81 1000000.00 1000000.00 As per AS-13

Dimension Consulting Pvt. Ltd Other 300000 300000 Unquoted Fully Paid 30.00 30.00 3000000.00 3000000.00 As per AS-13

Omaxe Limited Other 20 20 Quoted Fully Paid 0.00 0.00 6200.00 6200.00 As per AS-13

Saffron Holding Pvt. Ltd Other 50000 50000 Unquoted Fully Paid 4.56 4.56 750000.00 750000.00 As per AS-13

Sybly Industries Limited Other 87507358 87507358 Quoted Fully Paid 21.49 21.49 28473334.15 28473334.15 As per AS-13

Shree Banke Behari RCC Products pvt. Ltd. Other 420750 420750 Unquoted Fully Paid 50.00 50.00 8415000.00 8415000.00 As per AS-13

Vatsal Hotels Private Limited Other 600000 0 Unquoted Fully Paid 8.00 8.00 6000000.00 0.00 As per AS-13

Patliputra Credit & Securities Limited Other 250000 250000 Unquoted Fully Paid 2.33 2.33 250000.00 250000.00 As per AS-13

(c) Investments in Preference Shares

(d) Investments in Government or Trust securities

(e) Investments in Debentures or Bonds

(f) Investments in Mutual Funds

(g) Investments in partnership firms*

(h) Other non-current investments (specify nature)

Total      49,144,534.15      43,144,534.15 

No. of Shares / Units Extent of Holding 

(%)

Amount (`)

In
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NOTE - 26

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART 
OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST 
MARCH, 2015 AND THE STATEMENT OF 
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED ON THAT DATE

Company Overview:

CCL INTERNATIONAL LIMITED bearing CIN  
L26940DL1991PLC044520  was originally 
incorporated on 04th June 1991 under the 
Companies Act, 1956 as “Gupta Cements Private 
Limited”. The Company after passing necessary 
resolution as specified in the Companies Act, 
1956, got converted into Public Limited Company. 
Later the name was changed to “Chirawa 
Cements Limited” and finally the name was 
changed to its present name “CCL International 
Limited” and Certificate for change of name was 
obtained from ROC on 11th December 2008. The 
Registered office of the Company is situated at M-
4, Gupta Tower, B-1/1, Commercial Complex, 
Azadpur, New Delhi-110033. The Equity Shares 
of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock 
Exchange Limited & Delhi Stock Exchange.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Basis of preparation of Financial 
Statements

The financial statements are prepared under 
historical cost convention on an accrual basis and 
are in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to 
comply with the Accounting Standards notified 
under the Companies(Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2006 (as amended and which continue to 
be applicable in respect of section133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in terms of General Circular 
15/2013 dated 13 September 2013 of the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs) and the relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act, 1956. The preparation of 
financial statements requires the Management to 
make estimates and assumptions considered in 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
(including contingent liabilities) as of the date of 

the financial statements and the reported 
income and expenses during the reporting 
period. Management believes that the 
estimates used in preparation of the financial 
statements are prudent and reasonable. 
Future results could differ from these 
estimates.

2. Change in Accounting Policies

(i) Change in method of providing 
Depreciation:

Till the year ended 31 March 2014, the 
Company was using the 'Written Down Value' 
(WDV) method of providing depreciation on 
Office equipments, Furniture & fixtures, 
Vehicles & Plant & Machinery. To follow uniform 
basis of calculation of depreciation on all kinds 
of fixed assets, the Company has, during the 
current year, changed with retrospective effect 
its method of providing depreciation on these 
fixed assets from the 'Written Down Value' 
method to the 'Straight Line' method (SLM) at 
the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV to the 
Companies Act, 1956 / Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Depreciation on Fixed Assets:

Till the year ended 31 March 2014, Schedule 
XIV to the Companies Act, 1956, prescribed 
requirements concerning depreciation of fixed 
assets. From the current year, Schedule XIV 
has been replaced by Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. The applicability of 
Schedule II has resulted in the following 
changes related to depreciation of fixed assets:
Useful lives/ depreciation rates-

Till the year ended 31 March 2014, 
depreciation rates prescribed under Schedule 
XIV were treated as minimum rates and the 
Company was not allowed to charge 
depreciation at lower rates even if such lower 
rates were justified by the estimated useful life 
of the asset. Schedule II to the Companies Act 
2013 prescribes useful lives for fixed assets 
which, in many cases, are different from lives 
prescribed under the erstwhile Schedule XIV. 
However, Schedule II allows companies to use 
higher/ lower useful lives and residual values if 
such useful lives and residual values can be 

technically supported and justification for 
difference is disclosed in the financial 
statements. Considering the applicability of 
Schedule II, the management has re-estimated 
useful lives and residual values of all its fixed 
assets which are equal to useful lives and 
residual values specified in Schedule II. The 
management believes that depreciation rates 
currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the 
useful lives and residual values of fixed assets. 
The Company has used provisions of Schedule 
II to adjust the impact of useful lives/ 
depreciation rates arising on its first application. 
If a fixed assets has zero remaining useful life 
on the date of Schedule II becoming effective, 
i.e., 1 April 2014, its carrying amount, after 
retaining any residual value, is charged to the 
opening balance of Reserves & Surplus. The 
carrying amount of other fixed assets, i.e., fixed 
assets whose remaining useful life is not Nil on 
1 April 2014, is depreciated over their remaining 
useful life. During the year 2014-15, the 
company has adjusted Rs.47.00 Lacs with 
balances of reserves & surplus. However, this 
change in accounting policy did not have a 
material impact on the profit for the current year.

3. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires the 
management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet 
date and the results of operations during the 
reporting period. The actual results could differ 
from these estimates. Any revision to such 
accounting estimates is recognised in the 
accounting period in which such revision takes 
place.

4. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Cost comprises purchase price, duties, 
levies and any other cost relating to the 
acquisition and installation of the asset. Fixed 
assets under construction are treated as soon 
the assets become operational and ready for 
use. Borrowing cost, if any, directly attributable 
to the acquisition and / or construction of fixed 

asset, until the date assets are ready for its 
intended use, are capitalized as a part of the cost 
of that asset subject to the provisions of 
impairment of the assets.

5. Depreciation

5.1 Depreciation is the systematic allocation of 
the depreciable amount of an asset over its 
useful life and is provided on a straight-line 
basis over the useful life as prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Act, unless otherwise 
specified.

5.2 Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of 
an asset less its estimated residual value.

5.3 In case of additions or deletions during the 
year, depreciation is computed from the 
month in which such assets are put to use 
and up to previous month of sale, disposal or 
held for sale as the case may be. In case of 
impairment, depreciation is provided on the 
revised carrying amount over its remaining 
useful life.

6. Revenue Recognition

6.1 Revenue from Constructional contracts is 
recognized on the percentage completion 
method based on billing schedules agreed 
with the client on a progressive completion 
basis. Material & resources supplied by 
client are included as cost of construction 
and as revenue at market price. Price 
escalation claims and additional claims 
including those under arbitration are 
recognized as revenue when they are 
reasonable ascertained.

6.2 Sales are recognized when the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership in the goods 
are transferred to the customer and are 
recognised net of trade discounts, rebates, 
sales tax and excise duty

6.3 Revenues/Incomes and Cost /Expenditures 
are generally accounted on the accrual 
basis, as they are earned or incurred.

6.4 Dividend income is accounted when the 
right to receive is established and known.
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7. Inventories 

The value of various categories of inventories is 
arrived at as follows: 

7.1 Raw material, consumables and stores and 
spares are valued at the lower of cost or net 
realizable value. 

7.2 Work in progress is valued by taking cost of 
material used and labour charges incurred 
upto the stage of constructions and other 
related cost wherever applicable subject to 
their estimated net realizable value. 

7.3 Finished goods is valued at the lower of cost 
or net realizable value. 

7.4 Company has followed FIFO basis of 
valuation of its stock sold. 

8. Investments

8.1 The cost of an investment includes incidental 
expenses like brokerage, fees, and duties 
incurred prior to acquisition.

8.2 Long term investments are shown at cost. A 
provision for diminution is made to recognise 
a decline, if any, other than temporary in 
nature, in the value of long term investments.

8.3 Investment which are intended to be held for 
less than one year are classified as current 
investments and are carried at lower of cost 
and fair value determined on an individual 
investment basis. 

8.4 Advance for share application money are 
classified under the head “Investment”.

9. Taxation

Tax expense comprises of current and 
deferred tax. Current income tax is measured 
at the amount expected to be paid to the tax 
authorities in accordance with the Income-
tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflect 
the impact of current year timing differences 
between taxable income and accounting 
income for the year and reversal of timing 
differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is 

measured based on the tax rate and the tax 
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the 
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets other than on carried 
forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 
are recognised only to the extent that there is 
reasonable certainty that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which 
such deferred tax assets can be realised. 
Deferred Tax Liability on excess depreciation 
charged effected due to applicability of 
Companies Act 2013 adjusted in Reserve & 
Surplus.

Deferred tax asset on account of carried forward 
losses and unabsorbed depreciation are 
recognised only to the extent that there is virtual 
certainty supported by convincing evidence that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be 
realised.

10. Foreign Currency Transaction 
  

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at 
the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transactions. Exchange differences arising on 
foreign currency transactions are recognized as 
income or as expenses and accordingly debited 
or credited to profit and loss account. 

11. Retirement and other Employees' 
Benefits

11.1 Provident Fund : Provision of Provident 
Fund is not applicable to the company. 

11.2 Gratuity : No provision for gratuity has 
been made as there is no amount due towards.

12. Borrowing Cost
  

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition or construction of qualifying 
assets are capitalized for the period until the 
asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying 
asset is an asset that necessarily takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period they occur.

13. Joint Ventures
 
i) Interest in Jointly Control led 
Operations
Assets that it controls and the liabilities that it 
incurs, expenses that it incurs and its share of 
income that it earns from the joint ventures is 
recognized in its Separate Financial Statements; 
and

ii) Interest in Jointly Controlled Entities
Interest in such entity is accounted for as an 
investment in accordance with Accounting 
Standard (AS) – 13, Accounting for Investment. 

14. Impairment of Assets  
 

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at 
each balance sheet date if there is any indication 
of impairment of the carrying amount of the 
company's assets. If any indication exists, then 
recoverable amount / fair market value of such 
asset is estimated. An impairment loss is 
recognized wherever the carrying amount of the 
assets exceeds its recoverable amount / fair 
market value. After impairment, depreciation is 
provided on the revised carrying amount of the 
assets over its remaining useful life. A previously 
recognized impairment loss is increased or 
reversed  depend ing  on  changes  in  
circumstances. However the carrying amount 
after reversal is not increased beyond the 
carrying value that would have prevailed by 
charging usual depreciation as if there was no 
impairment.

15. Contingencies and Provisions  
 

A provision is recognized when there is a present 
obligation as a result of past event and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation, in respect of 
which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions are not discounted to its present 
value and are determined based on best 
estimate required to settle the obligation at the 
balance date. These are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the 
current management estimates.

16. Related Party Transaction

In related party transactions, all the material 
information as required by the Accounting Standards 
(AS) – 18 are given to disclose the effect on the 
financial position and operating results of the 
Company.

17. Earnings Per Share
  
Basic Earning Per Share is calculated by dividing the 
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares during the period. To calculate Diluted 
Earning Per Share, share application money 
pending allotment as at the balance sheet date, 
which is not kept separately and is being utilized in 
the business is treated as dilutive equity 
shares.  

18. Research and Development

All expenses pertaining to research are charged to 
the profit and loss account in the year in which they 
are incurred. All expenses pertaining to development 
are recognized if, and only if, future economic 
benefits from the asset are probable otherwise these 
expenses are charged to the profit and loss account 
in the year in which they are incurred.

B . NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

I. Presentation and disclosure of financial      
            statements:

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the revised 
Schedule VI notified under the Companies Act 1956, 
has become applicable to the companies, for 
preparation and presentation of its financial 
statements. The adoption of revised Schedule VI 
does not impact recognition and measurement 
principles followed for preparation of financial 
statements. However, it has significant impact on 
presentation and disclosures made in the financial 
statements. The Company has also reclassified the 
previous year figures in accordance with the 
requirements applicable in the current year.

Particulars
 

2014-15 (Rs.)
 

2013-14 ( Rs.)
Director’s Remuneration

 

6,00,000.00

 

6,00,000.00
Auditor’s Remuneration

 

30,000.00

 

30,000.00

II. Directors' and Auditors' Remuneration
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III. Foreign Exchange 

Particulars 2014-15 ( Rs.) 2013-14 ( Rs.) 

Earnings NIL NIL 

Outgo-Import of Material 2.22 2.02 

IV. Details of  Key Managerial Personnel :

Key Managerial
Personnel

 Nature of
Payment
 Amount

 

Mr. Akash Gupta
 

Director 
Remuneration

 6,00,000/-
 

Mrs. Rama Gupta
 

Rent
 

1,80,000/-
 

V. Enterprises (Domestic Companies) under significant influence of the 
Key Managerial Personnel and his relatives :

Name of Enterprises Nature of
Transaction 

Balance as on 
31.03.2015 

Natural Infracity Private 
Limited

 Share Application 
Money

 15,00,000 Dr.
 
 

Global Glass Technologies 
Private Limited 

 

Share Application 
Money

 91,000.00 Dr.
 

Vatsal Hotels Private 
Limited

 
Share Application 
Money

 
12,75,000 Dr.

 

Shree Bankey Behari 
RCC Products Private 
Limited

 
Share Application 
Money

 

1,48,70,000 Dr.

 

Dimension Consulting
Pvt. Ltd

 

Share Application 
Money

 
 

VI. Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share is Re 0.11 (Previous Year – Re. 0.10).

Items  Deferred Tax 

Liability 

/Assets as at 

01.04.2014 

Current 

Deferred 

Tax 

Deferred Tax

Liability/Assets 

as at

31.03.2015 

Difference between 

book and tax

depreciation  

46,21,181 55,67,525 1,01,88,706 

Unabsorbed 

Dep/Loss  

NIL NIL NIL 

Timing Difference-  

Merger Expenditure  

(5,88,079) 2,94,040 (2,94,039) 

Total Timing

Difference  

40,33,102 58,61,565 98,94,667 

Deferred Tax

Liabilities/Assets  

12,46,228 18,11,224 30,57,452 

 
VIII. Figure of the previous year has been regrouped / rearranged / re casted wherever necessary 
to confirm the figures of the current year.

As per Our report of even date attached

For KPMC & Associates                                            For and on behalf of the Board of 
Chartered Accountants            CCL International Limited
Firm Reg. No. 005359C 

(SANJAY MEHRA)           RAMA GUPTA ANIL KUMAR AKASH GUPTA
Partner       (Managing Director)                 (Director)                (Director)
M No. 075488                                                                              

Place  : Delhi
Dated : 30.05.2015

VII. Deferred Tax Liability /(Assets) :

As required by Accounting Standard on 'Accounting for Taxes on Income' ( AS-22) issued by ICAI , 
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AUDITORS CERTIFICATE

To,

The Board of Directors
CCL International Limited

We have examined the above Cash Flow Statement of CCL International Limited, for the year ended 
on March 31,2015. The Statement has been prepared by the company in accordance with the 
requirements of clause 32 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange and is based on & is in 
agreement with the corresponding Profit & Loss Account and Balance Sheet of the company covered 
by our report dated May 30, 2015 to the members of the company

For KPMC & Associates
Chartered Accountant

Firm Reg. No. 005359C 

Date: 30.05.2015
Place: Ghaziabad

          (Sanjay Mehra)
                                                                                                                                             Partner

M No. 075488                                                                              

 

in ?

2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit after Tax and Extra ordinary Items : 10268367 9915255

Adjustment for --

Depreciation and Amortisation 12788663 11343916

Provision for Tax 3021361 2812373

Deferred Tax Income 1811224 1190007

Agriculture Income Received -                       (678408)

Interest Paid 13137394 6562109

Interest Received (403372) (1685805)

Operating profit before working capital changes 40623637 29459447

Changes in Assets and Liabilities :

Trade and other receivables 103472975 (84825238)

Inventories (29164474) 9265501

Short Term Advances (884958) 19196366

Bank Over draft (44354791) 57899523

Expenses Payable 1656675 (433961)

Trade Payables (54010957) 29498429

Cash Generated from operation: 17338106 60060067

Income Tax Paid 2980941 5116725

NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 14357165 54943342

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment in Shares & Other Investment (6000000) (6000000)

Change in Long Term Loans & Advances 70480000 32219000

Capital Advance for Property -                       10000000

Purchase of Fixed Assets (29445545) (96472582)

Change in Deposits (17562809) (1989268)

Change in Short Term Loans & Advances (4384102) 10912742

Agriculture Income Received -                       678408

Interest Received 403372 1685805

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 13490916 (48965895)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Secured Loan Taken / ( Repaid ) 18156614 13804719

Interest Paid (13137394) (6562109)

Dividends Paid (including corporate dividend tax) (5576530) (5576530)

Unsecured Loan Taken / (Repaid) -                       (4900000)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (557309) (3233920)

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 27290772 2743527

ADD: CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 45186139 42442612

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 72476910 45186139

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (PREPARED PURSUANT TO LISTING AGREEMENT)

Particulars
For the year ended March 31
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CCL INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(CIN: L26940DL1991PLC044520)

Registered Office:  
M-4, Gupta Tower, B 1/1, Commercial Complex, Azadpur, New Delhi-110033

E-mail: cclinternational2008@gmail.com Phone: 0120-4214258
BALLOT FORM

1. Name
    Registered Address
    of the sole/first named Shareholder :
2. Name (s) of the Joint Shareholder (s) if any :
3. Registered Folio/DPID & Client ID No. :
4. No. of Shares held :
I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the Resolutions(s) to be passed for the business stated in the Notice of 

th ththe 24  Annual General Meeting of the company dated 30  September, 2015, by conveying my/our assent or dissent 
to the said Resolution (s) by placing the tick (√) mark at the appropriate box below

Resolu
tion 
No. 

Resolution For Against 

1. Adoption of Financial Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2015.   
2. Re-appointment of Mr.Akash Gupta, who retires by rotation.   
3. Declaration of Dividend   
4. Ratification of Auditor’s Appointment   
5. Ratification of the Remuneration of Cost Auditor   
6. Appointment of Mr. Akash Gupta as a Managing Director & Chief 

Executive Officer of a company. 
  

7. Consolidation of Equity Shares from Rs. 2/- to Rs. 10/-   
8. Appointment of Mr. Mukesh Kumar Sharm a as a Professional 

Director. 
  

 Place: ______
Date: _______                              

Signature of Shareholder

Notes: Please read the instructions carefully 

INSTRUCTIONS

1. Members may fill up the Ballot Form printed and submit the same in the sealed envelope to the Scrutinizer.

2. Company will not be responsible if the envelope containing the Ballot Form is lost in transit.

3. Unsigned, incomplete or incorrectly ticked forms are liable to be rejected and the decision of the Scrutinizer 

on the validity of the forms will be final.

4. In the event member casts his votes through both the process i.e., E-voting and Ballot Form, the votes in the 

electronic system would be considered and the Ballot Form would be ignored.

5. To avoid fraudulent transactions, the identity/signature of the members holding shares in the 

electronic/demat form is verified with the specimen signatures furnished by NSDL/CDSL and that of 

members holding shares in physical form is verified as per the records of the share transfer agent of the 

company (i.e., Alankit Assignments Ltd). Members are requested to keep the same updated.

6. There will be only one Ballot Form for every Folio/DP ID Client irrespective of the numbers of Joint members.

7. In case of joint holders, the Ballot Form should be signed by the first named shareholder and in his/her 

absence by the next named shareholders. Ballot form signed by a joint holder shall be treated valid if signed 

as per records available with the Company and the Company shall not entertain any object on such Ballot 

Form signed by other joint holders.

8. Where the Ballot Forms has been signed by an authorized representative of the body 

corporate/Trust/Society, etc. A certified copy of the relevant authorization/Board resolution to vote should 

accompany the Ballot Form.

9. Instructions for e-voting procedure are available in the Notice of annual general meeting.

th th
24  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:     WEDNESDAY, 30  SEPTEMBER, 2015 AT 12:30 P.M

Name of the Member(s) 
Registered Address 

 DP ID /Client ID 
No. of Shares 

 

 

Resolution No. Resolution For Against 
1. Adoption of Financial Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2015.   

2. Re-appointment of Mr.Akash Gupta, who retires by rotation.   
3. Declaration of Dividend   

4. Ratification of Auditor’s Appointment   
5. Ratification of the Remuneration of Cost Auditor   
6. Appointment of Mr. Akash Gupta as a Managing Director & Chief 

Executive Officer of a company. 
  

7. Consolidation of Equity Shares from Rs. 2/- to Rs. 10/-   

8. Appointment of Mr. Mukesh Kumar Sharma as a Professional Director.   
 

CCL INTERNATIONAL LIMITED        Attendance Slip
CIN No.: L26940DL1991PLC044520
Regd. Office: M-4, Gupta Tower, B 1/1, 
Commercial Complex, Azadpur, 
New Delhi-110033. 

DP ID 
Client ID 
No. of Shares 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE REGISTERED 
SHAREHOLDER 

 

th th
24  Annual General Meeting:     Wednesday, 30  September, 2015 AT 12:30 P.M.

CCL INTERNATIONAL LIMITED                                                                   
CIN No.: L26940DL1991PLC044520
Regd. Office: M-4, Gupta Tower, B 1/1, 
Commercial Complex, Azadpur, 
New Delhi-110033.

Proxy Form
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